Ricehmond

REGULAR MEETING OF THE RENT BOARD OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, COMMUNITY SERVICES BUILDING
440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804

Wednesday, July 18, 2018

Boardmembers
Nancy Combs
Virginia Finlay
Emma Gerould

David Gray

Lauren Maddock

Link to Rent Board Meeting Agendas and Accompanying Materials:
www.ci.richmond.ca.us/3375/Rent-Board

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request disability-
related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or
services, please contact Bruce Soublet, ADA Coordinator, at (510) 620-6509 at least
three business days before the meeting date.

NOTICE TO PUBLIC

The City of Richmond encourages community participation at public meetings and has
established procedures that are intended to accommodate public input in a timely and
time-sensitive way. As a courtesy to all members of the public who wish to participate in
Rent Board meetings, please observe the following procedures:

Public Comment on Agenda Items: Persons wishing to speak on a particular item on the
agenda shall file a speaker form with City staff PRIOR to the Rent Board’s consideration
of the item on the agenda. Once the clerk announces the item, only those persons who



http://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/3375/Rent-Board

Wednesday, July 18, 2018

have previously submitted speaker forms shall be permitted to speak on the item. Each
speaker will be allowed up to two minutes to address the Rent Board.

Public Forum: Individuals who would like to address the Rent Board on matters not
listed on the agenda or on items remaining on the consent calendar may do so under
Public Forum. All speakers must complete and file a speaker’s card with City staff prior
to the commencement of Public Forum. The amount of time allotted to individual
speakers shall be determined based on the number of persons requesting to speak
during this item. The time allocation for each speaker will be as follows: 15 or fewer
speakers, a maximum of 2 minutes; 16 to 24 speakers, a maximum of 1 and one-half
minutes; and 25 or more speakers, a maximum of 1 minute.

Conduct at Meetings: Richmond Rent Board meetings are limited public forums during
which the City strives to provide an open, safe atmosphere and promote robust public
debate. Members of the public, however, must comply with state law, as well as the
City’s laws and procedures and may not actually disrupt the orderly conduct of these
meetings. The public, for example, may not shout or use amplifying devices, must
submit comment cards and speak during their allotted time in order to provide public
comment, may not create a physical disturbance, may not speak on matters unrelated
to issues within the jurisdiction of the Rent Board or the agenda item at hand, and may
not cause immediate threats to public safety.

City Harassment Policy: The City invites public comment and critique about its
operations, including comment about the performance of its public officials and
employees, at the public meetings of the City Council and boards and commissions.
However, discriminatory or harassing comments about or in the presence of City
employees, even comments by third parties, may create a hostile work environment, if
severe or pervasive. The City prohibits harassment against an applicant, employee, or
contractor on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical
disability, medical condition, mental disability, marital status, sex (including pregnancy,
childbirth, and related medical conditions), sexual orientation, gender identity, age or
veteran status, or any other characteristic protected by federal, state or local law. In
order to acknowledge the public’s right to comment on City operations at public
meetings, which could include comments that violate the City’s harassment policy if
such comments do not cause an actual disruption under the Council Rules and
Procedures, while taking reasonable steps to protect City employees from
discrimination and harassment, City Boards and Commissions shall adhere to the
following procedures. If any person makes a harassing remark at a public meeting that
violates the above City policy prohibiting harassment, the presiding officer of the
meeting may, at the conclusion of the speaker’s remarks and allotted time: (a) remind
the public that the City’s Policy Regarding Harassment of its Employees is contained in
the written posted agenda; and (b) state that comments in violation of City policy are not
condoned by the City and will play no role in City decisions. If any person makes a
harassing remark at a public meeting that violates the above City policy, any City
employee in the room who is offended by remarks violating the City’s policy is excused
from attendance at the meeting. No City employee is compelled to remain in attendance




Wednesday, July 18, 2018

where it appears likely that speakers will make further harassing comments. If an
employee leaves a City meeting for this reason, the presiding officer may send a
designee to notify any offended employee who has left the meeting when those
comments are likely concluded so that the employee may return to the meeting. The
presiding officer may remind an employee or any council or board or commission
member that he or she may leave the meeting if a remark violating the City’s
harassment policy is made.



This page intentionally left blank



Wednesday, July 18, 2018

REGULAR MEETING OF THE RICHMOND RENT BOARD

AGENDA

5:00 PM

. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

. ROLL CALL

. STATEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
. AGENDA REVIEW

. INTRODUCTIONS FROM RENT PROGRAM STAFF MEMBERS

. PUBLIC FORUM

. RENT BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR

G-1. APPROVE the minutes of the June 20, 2018, Cynthia Shaw
Regular Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board.

G-2. RECEIVE letters from community members Cynthia Shaw
regarding the Fair Rent, Just Cause for
Eviction, and Homeowner Protection
Ordinance, RMC 11.100.

G-3. RECEIVE the June 2018 Rent Program Paige Roosa
Monthly Report.

G-4. APPROVE the re-chaptering of existing Rent Nicolas Traylor
Board Regulations for the purpose of Charles Oshinuga
centralizing and consolidating all Regulations
into a chapter format.

. REGULATIONS

H-1. ADOPT Regulation 201.5, defining the Nicolas Traylor
meaning of rooming and boarding houses and  Charles Oshinuga
creating standards that must be followed when
determining whether a property is considered a
rooming and boarding house.



Wednesday, July 18, 2018

H-2. (1) REMOVE Chapter 11 of the Regulations Nicolas Traylor
entitled “Remedies” and APPROVE a new Charles Oshinuga
Chapter 11 of the Regulation entitled “Security
Deposit”, (2) ADOPT Regulation 1101
describing the permissibility of security deposit
increases, and ADOPT Regulation 1102
explaining the circumstances where a Tenant
may file a petition based on an unlawful
retention or increase in the security deposit.

|. REPORTS OF OFFICERS

J. ADJOURNMENT

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Rent
Board regarding any item on this agenda will be made available at the Rent
Program Office located on the second floor of 440 Civic Center Plaza and will be
posted at www.richmondrent.org.



http://www.richmondrent.org/

Department: Rent Program

Meeting Date: July 18, 2018

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564

Final Decision Date Deadline: July 18, 2018

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The minutes of the June 20, 2018, Regular Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board require

approval.

INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY
[ city Council

[] Redevelopment

[J Joint Powers
Financing Authority

[ Surplus Property
Authority

[J Housing Authority

[] Local Reuse Authority X Other: Rent Board

Agency
[J Finance [] Public Safety Public
Standing Services Standing
Committee Committee
ITEM

(] Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit)

[] Public Hearing

[] Contract/Agreement

[] Grant Application/Acceptance
[ ] Resolution

[ ] Regulation X] Other: CONSENT CALENDAR
[ ] Rent Board As Whole
[] Claims Filed Against City of Richmond

[] Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the minutes of the June 20, 2018 Regular Meeting — Rent Program (Cynthia Shaw

620-5552).

AGENDA ITEM NO:

G-1.

rev 2/06

P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rgst Formrev.doc




This page intentionally left blank



ITEM G-1
ATTACHMENT 1

RICHMOND, CALIFORNIA, June 20, 2018

The Regular Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board was
called to order at 5:01 P.M.

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

Present: Boardmembers Combs, Finlay, Maddock and
Chair Gray.

Absent: Vice Chair Gerould.

(Vice Chair Gerould present as of 5:06 P.M.)

STATEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None.

AGENDA REVIEW

Item H-3 was removed from Rent Board as a Whole for
discussion before Item G-1 under Regulations.

PUBLIC FORUM

Cordell Hindler invited the Rent Board to attend several
community events in the month of June. He also mentioned that
Executive Director, Nicolas Traylor will provide a presentation on
Rent Control at the Richmond Neighborhood Coordinating
Council at their July 9™ meeting. He also congratulated Chair Gray
on the new edition to his family.

Lori D. Wickliff expressed her concerns about the fairness
of the Rent Board meetings. She feels that the meetings should be
fair and objective to hear from both Landlords and Tenants. She
also expressed how Richmond property owners provide housing to
tenants with low rents and that they should not be compared to
other cities that have higher rents. She also expressed her concerns
about the Rent Board working with Kenneth Baar and feels that the
Rent Program should hire a local contractor who can be more
accessible when it comes to writing the Rent Board laws. She also
feels that the Rent Program should consider hiring another
contractor to represent property owners so that there can be a sense
of fairness.

Rb20June2018
Page 1 of 7



ITEM G-1
ATTACHMENT 1

Several residents from Heritage Park Apartments expressed
gratitude to Rent Program Staff, Executive Director, Nicolas
Traylor and other City officials, for negotiating a proposed
agreement with Heritage Park Apartments Property Management
in regards to the increased rents and safety concerns on the
property. The following individuals gave comments: Marilyn
Tims, Otha Fowler, Audrey Jenkins, Susan Singh, Elouise (no last
name provided), James Daniels, Stephen Heninger, Ana Oré¢, and
Elsa Stevens.

Linda Newton expressed concerns regarding the length of
the agenda and how the information was too much for one
meeting. She also expressed her concerns about the contract
extension and the salary increase for Michael Roush and how it
relates to the Rent Program budget and opposed the contract
extension for Kenneth Baar. She also mentioned that the AURHP
has commented on Kenneth Baar’s performance of how he uses the
language of other jurisdictions Ordinances and how he is not a so-
called “Sole Source” provider. She also feels that the Board
should consider contracting with Michael St. John as an alternative
to form a balance when it comes to the Board making decisions
that affect landlords and tenants and the citizens of Richmond.

Alonzo Chess expressed concerns regarding exemptions in
regards to Section 8 tenancies and the Rent Program. He also
would like clarity in regards to the difference between a property
owner and a landlord. He also would like to know if the Rent
Board supersedes the authority of the Housing Authority when it
comes to inspections, rent increases and decreases. He feels that
the Rent Board should revisit the laws in regards to partial
exemption requirements for Section 8 tenancies. He mentioned that
the Housing Authority offers similar resources as the Rent
Program and feels that Section 8 tenancies should be fully exempt.
He also expressed that the cost to register tenancies causes a
hardship on a working class property owner.

RENT BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR

On motion of Boardmember Combs, seconded by Vice
Chair Gerould, the item(s) marked with an (*) were approved with
Chair Gray abstaining from the vote for Item F-6.

*F-1. Approve the minutes of the May 16, 2018, Regular
Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board.

Rb20June2018
Page 2 of 7



ITEM G-1
ATTACHMENT 1

*F-2. Receive the May 2018 Rent Program Monthly
Report.

*F-3. Approve an amendment to the contract for
community legal services with the Eviction Defense Center
increasing the amount by $75,000 for Fiscal Year 2018-19, to a
total not to exceed $112,500, and extending the term to June 30,
20109.

*F-4. Approve an amendment to the contract for
community legal services with Centro Legal de la Raza increasing
the amount by $75,000 for Fiscal Year 2018-19, to a total not to
exceed $112,500, extending the term to June 30, 2019, and
modifying the service plan to specify that Centro Legal de la Raza
agrees to provide one hundred and twenty-five legal consultations
to qualifying tenants per year.

*F-5. Approve an amendment to the contract for translation
services with Document Tracking Services increasing the amount
by $10,000, to a total not to exceed $19,999, and extending the
term to June 30, 2019.

*F-6. Approve the Second Amendment to the Legal
Services Agreement with Michael Roush increasing the amount by
$20,000 for the remainder of Fiscal Year 2017-18 and $57,000 for
Fiscal Year 2018-19 to a total not to exceed $187,000, and
extending the term to June 30, 2019.

*F-7. Approve an amendment to the contract for
preparation of rent adjustment regulations for consideration by the
Rent Board with Kenneth Baar extending the term to June 30,
20109.

REGULATIONS

H-3. This item was removed from Rent Board as a
Whole for discussion before Item G-1 under Regulations.
The matter to receive a presentation regarding the methodology
employed for the first billing cycle of the Rental Housing Fee was
presented by Deputy Director, Paige Roosa. The presentation
included the background of the Rental Housing Fee, the basic
approach for billing of the Fee, an overview of the Rental Housing
Fee billing process, tasks which included database development,
mass mailing to suspected rental property owners, printing and
mailing invoices, Rental Housing Fee due date, new and past due

Rb20June2018
Page 3 of 7



ITEM G-1
ATTACHMENT 1

invoices printed and mailed, next steps and the recommended
action. Discussion ensued. There were no public comments on this
item. No action was taken.

G-1. The matter to adopt Regulation 17-11, establishing the
2018 Annual General Adjustment in the amount of 3.6% for
tenancies commencing prior to September 1, 2017 was presented
by Staff Attorney, Charles Oshinuga. The presentation included
legal principals to keep in mind, AGA background, what does
proposed Regulation 17-11 do, and the recommended action.
Discussion ensued. There were no public comments on this item. A
motion by Boardmember Maddock, seconded by Vice Chair
Gerould, to adopt Regulation 17-11, establishing the 2018 Annual
General Adjustment in the amount of 3.6% for tenancies
commencing prior to September 1, 2017, was passed by the
following vote: Ayes: Boardmembers Combs, Finlay, Maddock,
Vice Chair Gerould and Chair Gray. Noes: None. Abstentions:
None. Absent: None.

G-2. The matter to approve the Chapterization of
Regulation 17-01 and Regulation 17-03 into Chapter 2 and provide
direction to staff regarding how future Chaptered Regulations
should be presented to the Rent Board was presented by Staff
Attorney, Charles Oshinuga. The presentation included
chapterization background, proposed chapterization, and the
recommended action. Discussion ensued. There were no public
comments on this item. A motion by Chair Gray, seconded by
Boardmember Combs, to approve the Chapterization of Regulation
17-01 and Regulation 17-03 into Chapter 2, and provide the
following direction to staff: present to the Rent Board the entire
chaptered Regulations as a whole at the next meeting, but that the
proposed chapter format be circulated for community comment
and review prior to publishing the proposed chapter format in the
Rent Board’s agenda packet, passed by the following vote: Ayes:
Boardmembers Combs, Finlay, Maddock and Vice Chair Gerould
and Chair Gray. Noes: None. Abstentions: None. Absent: None.

G-3. The matter to amend Rent Board Regulation 400 to
include a reference to Civil Code 1947.7, as amended, and amend
Rent Board Regulation 402, authorizing the registration of tenant
information and any other information reasonably requested by the
Rent Program to effectuate the purpose of the Fair Rent, Just Cause
for Eviction, and Homeowner Protection Ordinance, was presented
by Staff Attorney, Charles Oshinuga. The presentation included
rent registry background, rent registry civil code section 1947.7(qg),
what does proposed Regulation 400 do, what does proposed

Rb20June2018
Page 4 of 7



ITEM G-1
ATTACHMENT 1

Regulation 402(A)(1) do, and the recommended action. Discussion
ensued. The following individual gave comments: Lori D.
Wickliff. A motion by Chair Gray, seconded by Vice Chair
Gerould, to amend Rent Board Regulation 400 to include a
reference to Civil Code 1947.7, as amended, and amend Rent
Board Regulation 402, authorizing the registration of tenant
information and any other information reasonably requested by the
Rent Program to effectuate the purpose of the Fair Rent, Just Cause
for Eviction, and Homeowner Protection Ordinance, passed by the
following vote: Ayes: Boardmembers Combs, Finlay, Maddock,
Vice Chair Gerould and Chair Gray. Noes: None. Abstentions:
None. Absent: None.

G-4. The matter to adopt (1) Regulation 205, authorizing
Staff to process landlord requests for an administrative
determination as to the applicability of the Rent Ordinance to a
particular unit or property; (2) Regulation 206, creating an
administrative determination process and procedure as it relates to
request made to determine the applicability of the Rent Ordinance
to a particular unit or property; (3) Regulation 207, authorizing a
tenant petition challenging the exempt status of particular unit or
property; (4) Regulation 416, authorizing petitions and procedures
for rent-withholding based on a landlord’s failure to comply with
Reporting requirements set forth in Richmond Municipal Code
Section 11.100.060(s), including failure to pay the Residential
Rental Housing Fee; (5) Regulation 417, describing the parties to a
petition brought under Regulation 416; (6) Regulation 418,
permitting the Board to initiate a rent withholding process in lieu
of a tenant petition; (7) Regulation 419, explaining that the
principles of substantial compliance apply to petitions brought
under Regulation 416; (8) Regulation 420, describing that if
compliance occurs prior to the set hearing, the tenant petition must
be dismissed; (9) Regulation 421, creating standards that a Hearing
Officer’s decision must meet; and (10) Regulation 424, authorizing
the use of an escrow account to hold the withheld rent until
compliance occurs, was presented by Staff Attorney, Charles
Oshinuga. The presentation included background information on
how exemption status is determined, a review of Richmond
Municipal Code Section 11.100.060(s), purpose of proposed
Regulations 205, 206, 207, 416, 417, 418, 419, 420, 421, and 424,
the proposed Regulations 205, 206, 207, 416, 417, 418, 419, 420,
421, and 424 and the recommended action. Discussion ensued. The
following individuals gave comments: Lori D. Wickliff and Linda
Newton. A motion by Chair Gray, seconded by Boardmember
Maddock, to adopt Regulations 205, 206, 207, 416, 417, 418, 419,
420, 421, and 424, passed by the following vote:

Rb20June2018
Page 5 of 7



ITEM G-1
ATTACHMENT 1

Ayes: Boardmembers Combs, Finlay, Maddock, Vice Chair
Gerould and Chair Gray. Noes: None. Abstentions: None.
Absent: None.

RENT BOARD AS AWHOLE

H-1. The matter to receive a presentation of a partial Client
Report completed by Graduate Student Fellow Philip Verma,
prepared in partial satisfaction for the degree of Master of City
Planning, regarding promoting stability and quality in affordable
housing developments in Richmond was presented by Graduate
Student Fellow Philip Verma. The presentation included an
outline, key terms, the definition of Section 8, Section 8 rules and
administration, the definition of Low-Income Housing Tax Credits
(LIHTC), LIHTC rules and administration, inspections and
grievances, types of affordable housing in Richmond, geography of
affordable housing, Section 8 households in Richmond, LIHTC
households in California, a graph of permitted rent ceilings in
LIHTC, and the recommended action. Discussion ensued. There
were no public comments on this item. No action was taken.

H-2. The matter to (1) receive an update regarding rent
increases in Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties
and (2) appoint an ad hoc Rent Board committee (consisting of two
Boardmembers) to work with staff to develop an agreement with
Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) providers that would
limit rent increases applied in any twelve-month period to Rental
Units in LIHTC developments to the lesser of (a) the maximum
rent permitted by the State Tax Credit Allocation Committee or (b)
the Annual General Adjustment percentage rent increase for that
year plus no more than five percent of deferred rent increases was
presented by Executive Director, Nicolas Traylor. The presentation
included the background, capacity of the Richmond Housing
Authority to provide assistance, May 2018 meeting with affordable
housing providers, proposal from affordable housing providers,
affordable housing providers in support of proposed agreement,
proposed next steps and the recommended action. Discussion
ensued. There were no public comments on this item. A motion by
Chair Gray, seconded by Boardmember Combs, to receive an
update regarding rent increases in Low Income Housing Tax
Credit (LIHTC) properties and appoint Boardmember Maddock
and Vice Chair Gerould to serve as the ad hoc Rent Board
committee, to work with staff to develop an agreement with Low
Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) providers that would limit
rent increases applied in any twelve-month period to Rental Units
in LIHTC developments to the lesser of (a) the maximum rent

Rb20June2018
Page 6 of 7



ITEM G-1
ATTACHMENT 1

permitted by the State Tax Credit Allocation Committee or (b) the
Annual General Adjustment percentage rent increase for that year
plus no more than five percent of deferred rent increases, passed by
the following vote: Ayes: Boardmembers Combs, Finlay,
Maddock, Vice Chair Gerould and Chair Gray. Noes: None.
Abstentions: None. Absent: None.

REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Executive Director, Nicolas Traylor gave a brief report on
the upcoming Realtors and Property Managers workshop on July
14th. He also gave a brief report on the success of the Tenant 101
Community Workshop held on June 9, 2018. He also gave an
update on the new Administrative Aide starting on June 25

Chair Gray mentioned that he reached out to other City
staff last Monday to understand where the Rent Program stands
financially in terms of repaying the City. He informed that as that
date, our department was considered in the black and that we have
repaid the funds borrowed from the city’s general fund.

Boardmember Maddock briefly mentioned that she asked
staff to prepare a quarterly financial report to present to the Rent
Board. A sample of the quarterly report was distributed to
Boardmembers for feedback to ensure it achieves the desired
purpose.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at
7:59 P.M.

Cynthia Shaw and Ramona Howell
Staff Clerks

(SEAL)

Approved:

David Gray, Chair

Rb20June2018
Page 7 of 7



This page intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564
Meeting Date: July 18, 2018 Final Decision Date Deadline: July 18, 2018

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: Members of the community have sent letters to the Rent Board and Rent Program staff
members. Staff members recommend letters that do not pertain to a specific item on the Rent Board agenda be included
as consent items for consideration by the Rent Board.

INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY

[ city Council [] Redevelopment ] Housing Authority [ Surplus Property ~ [] Joint Powers
Agency Authority Financing Authority
[J Finance [] Public Safety Public  [] Local Reuse Authority X]Other: Rent Board
Standing Services Standing
Committee Committee
ITEM

(] Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit)

(] Public Hearing [ ] Regulation [X] Other: CONSENT CALENDAR
[] Contract/Agreement ] Rent Board As Whole

[] Grant Application/Acceptance [] Claims Filed Against City of Richmond

[] Resolution [] Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive letters from community members regarding the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and
Homeowner Protection Ordinance, RMC 11.100 — Rent Program (Cynthia Shaw 620-5552).

AGENDA ITEM NO:

G-2.

rev 2/06 P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqgst Formrev.doc



This page intentionally left blank



ITEM G-2

Linda M. Newton ATTACHMENT 1

214 Washington Avenue
Point Richmond, CA 94801

May 15,2018

City of Richmond Rent Program
440 Civic Center Plaza, Ste. 200
Richmond, CA 94804

Attn: Paige Roosa

Subj:  Concerns regarding “Regulation regarding units exempt from the Fair Rent, Just Cause for
Eviction, and Homeowner Protection Ordinance” of June 21,2017

Dear Rent Board Members and Staff,

At the June 21, 2017 meeting of the Rent Board adopted Regulation 17-03. The “Statement of the
Issue” states, “Section 11.100.030(d) of the Fair Rent...Ordinance (Section 11.100.070), but does not
address which rental units are also exempt from the Just Cause of Eviction provisions of the Ordinance
(Section 11.10.050). Adoption of a regulation is therefore necessary to clarify which units are exempt
from both the Rent Control and Just Cause for Eviction provisions.”

Our concerns refer specifically to item (a) “Rental units in hotels, motels, inns, tourist homes and
rooming and boarding houses that are rented primarily to transient guests for a period of fewer
than 14 days [emphasis mine].”

1. For example, problems can occur when guests want to overstay their contract. If we have
reservations already lined up, then is it right that a guest can sue us for not extending their
contract? We have already had guests who were upset when their contracts were up and decided to
stay longer, but due to other reservations that had to be honored, they couldn’t stay. Under the new
ordinance it appears that in a situation like that, we would be responsible for moving expenses and
other compensation. It has already been well documented in the news that there are some transient
guests who commit fraud by taking advantage of their hosts (throwing parties, complaining to Airbnb
about the rental not being what they expected even though it was, etc). Therefore, we would expect
that some of these guests would take advantage of the just cause eviction part and insist on getting
recompense for their disappointment of not being able to rent longer than their contract states.

2. Our short term rental business should not be in the same class as long term rentals. We
provide fully furnished accommodations just like a hotel. And just like a hotel, we do not lease out our
property. This is a different business model from long term lease rentals. Combining long term lease
‘'rentals and “transient guest” rentals in the same ordinance does not make sense.

3. Establishing the 13 day maximum is too short for many transient guests. In the Bay Area it is
common for guests to visit relatives for a month, or to recover from surgery for a month, or to work
during the Chevron turn-around for a month, or to intern at corporations during the summer for a
month or so. At the same time it is common for a proprietor of one of these short term establishments
to have reservations set for new transient guests after the previous contracted month or so. The 13 day
maximum puts us proprietors in the transient guest rental business in a difficult position by



ITEM G-2

Rent Program p. 2 ATTACHMENT 1

inconveniencing those guests who need a place to stay for more than 13 days. It also means it limits
our ability to maintain a profitable flow of guests.

In conclusion, if this combination of rental businesses in the same ordinance is considered legal, then
we urge the Rent Board to modify the language so that the transient rental business can honor its legal
contracts and continue to take reservations. If that modification requires a ballot measure, then we
request an exemption for our short term rental business.

Thank you for looking into this part of the ordinance and considering the odd situation in which this
places us. We look forward to your reply.

"Yours truly,
Aenda I Nt

Linda M. Newton



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564
Meeting Date: _July 18, 2018 Final Decision Date Deadline: July 18, 2018

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The Monthly Activity Report is designed to provide members of the Rent Board and
Richmond community with a summary of the Rent Program’s activities for the month. With a now fully-staffed department,
staff members find it timely to begin producing such reports on a monthly basis.

INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY

[ city Council [] Redevelopment ] Housing Authority [ Surplus Property ~ [] Joint Powers
Agency Authority Financing Authority
[J Finance [] Public Safety Public  [] Local Reuse Authority X]Other: Rent Board
Standing Services Standing
Committee Committee
ITEM

(] Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit)

] Public Hearing [ ] Regulation [X] Other: CONSENT CALENDAR
[] Contract/Agreement ] Rent Board As Whole

[] Grant Application/Acceptance [] Claims Filed Against City of Richmond

[] Resolution [] Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: RECEIVE the June 2018 Rent Program Monthly Report - Rent Program (Paige Roosa 620-
6537).

AGENDA ITEM NO:

G-3.

rev 2/06 P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rgst Formrev.doc



This page intentionally left blank



CITY OF RICHMOND RENT PROGRAM

City of

Richmond
MEMORANDUM
TO: Chair Gray and Members of the Rent Board
FROM: Paige Roosa, Deputy Director
DATE: July 18, 2018
SUBJECT:  JUNE 2018 MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
Introduction

The Monthly Activity Report is designed to provide members of the Rent Board and Richmond
community with a summary of the Rent Program’s activities for the month. With a now fully-
staffed department, staff members find it timely to begin producing such reports on a monthly
basis. It is anticipated the format, content, and detail of this report will evolve over time.
Feedback concerning this report may be submitted via email to rent@ci.richmond.ca.us or by

calling (510) 234-RENT (7368).
Summary of Activities

I. Counseling and Community Engagement

Monthly Activity Occurrences | Prior Month % Change from
Occurrences Prior Month

Phone Call Consultations 821 529 55.2%
Walk-In Consultations (includes 268 174 54.0%
appointments)
Email Responses 334 211 58.3%

Total Consultations | 1,542 914 68.7%
Courtesy Compliance Letters Mailed 9 22 -59.1%
Warning Letters Mailed 2 3 -33.3%
Direct Referrals to Legal Service Providers | 27 21 28.6%
Declarations of Exemption Processed 230 40 475%
Mediations Held 3 2 50%
Community Workshop Attendees 28 N/A N/A
(05/12/18 Security Deposits)
Community Workshop Attendees 19 N/A N/A

(06/09/18 Tenant 101)

440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804-1630

Telephone: 510-234-RENT (7368) Fax: (510) 307-8149 www.richmondrent.org



mailto:rent@ci.richmond.ca.us

II. Fee Collection

ITEM G-3

Monthly Activity Total Prior Month % Change from
Total Prior Month

Revenue Collected June 1, 2018 - $88,979.25 $36,757.50 142.1%

June 30, 2018

Total Revenue Collected through | $1,878,419.86 (67.0% | $1,779,983 5.5%

May 30, 2018 of total) (61.0% of total)

Invoices Generated 2,277 3,115 -26.9%

II1. Filing of Notices

Type of Form Monthly Prior Month | % Change from
Submissions/ | Total Prior Month
Notices Filed
Enrollment 51 38 34.2%
Excess Rent Complaint 2 3 -33.3%
Proof of Excess Rent Refund 7 11 -36.4%
Change in Terms of Tenancy Notices Filed 19 15 26.7%
Rent Increase Notices Filed 82 43 90.7%
Termination Notices Filed 495 349 41.8%
Applicable Just Cause for Eviction - 485 347 39.8%
Nonpayment of Rent
Applicable Just Cause for Eviction - 6 0 N/A
Breach of Lease
Applicable Just Cause for Eviction - 3 1 200%
Nuisance
Applicable Just Cause for Eviction - 1 0 N/A
Owner Move-In
Agent Authorization 9 13 -30.8%
Petition for Maximum Allowable Rent 7 11 -36.4%
Increase or Decrease
Proof of Permanent Relocation Payment 1 0 N/A
Form
Proof of Temporary Relocation Payment 0 0 N/A
Form
Unpaid Permanent Relocation Complaint 2 0 N/A
Unpaid Temporary Relocation Complaint 0 0 N/A
Total Form Submissions/Notices Filed | 675 483 39.8%

Page 2 of 2




AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564
Meeting Date: _July 18, 2018 Final Decision Date Deadline: July 18, 2018

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The Rent Board uses two different nomenclatures in adopting its Regulations (e.g
numbered regulations, such as Regulation 17-01, and chaptered regulations, such as Regulation Chapter 8). This may be
a source of confusion and complicate the task of locating and understanding the Regulations for the community. To
minimize this potential confusion and improve accessibility, staff members are recommending centralization of existing
Regulations, through a reformatting process known as “Chapterization.”

INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY

[ city Council [] Redevelopment ] Housing Authority [ Surplus Property ~ [] Joint Powers
Agency Authority Financing Authority
[J Finance [] Public Safety Public  [] Local Reuse Authority X]Other: Rent Board
Standing Services Standing
Committee Committee
ITEM

[_] Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit)

[] Public Hearing [ ] Regulation [X] Other: CONSENT CALENDAR
[] Contract/Agreement ] Rent Board As Whole

[] Grant Application/Acceptance [] Claims Filed Against City of Richmond

[ ] Resolution [] Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: APPROVE the re-chaptering of all existing Rent Board Regulations for the purpose of
centralizing and consolidating all Regulations into a chapter format — Rent Program (Nicolas Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-
6564).

AGENDA ITEM NO:

G-4.

rev 2/06 P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqgst Formrev.doc



This page intentionally left blank



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
DRAFT Chapterization of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

DISCLAIMER:

The following content consists of previously adopted Rent Board Regulations, which are in the
process of being reformatted into chapters for ease of navigation. The proposed format has
been provided to allow for community review prior to the Rent Board’s consideration for
adoption.

SUBMISSION OF COMMENTS:

Community members may submit written comments on the proposed format of the regulations to
be shared with the Rent Board prior to adoption. Comments may be submitted by mail or email
to:

City of Richmond Rent Program
ATTN: Cynthia Shaw, Rent Board Clerk
440 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 200, Richmond, CA 94804
-OR-
cynthia_shaw@ci.richmond.ca.us

PLEASE NOTE: All comments on the proposed format of the regulations must be received no
later than 5 P.M. on Tuesday, July 17, 2018, to allow for transmission to the Rent Board
members at or before their Regular Meeting on Wednesday, July 18, 2018.



This page intentionally left blank



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

CITY OF RICHMOND RENT BOARD
REGULATIONS FOR RICHMOND MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 11.100 —
RICHMOND FAIR RENT, JUST CAUSE FOR EVICTION AND HOMEOWNER
PROTECTION ORDINANCE

Page 2 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter 1: PURPOSE

100. Purpose of the Regulations of the Richmond Rent Board
Chapter 2:  APPLICABILITY

200. Purpose

201. Rental Units Exempt from both the Rent Control (R.M.C § 11.100.070) and Just Cause
from Eviction (R.M.C 8§ 11.100.050) Provisions of the Ordinance

202. Governmentally Subsidized Rental Units Exempt from the Rent Control Provisions of the
Ordinance

203.  Other Rental Units Exempt from the Rent Control Provisions of the Ordinance

204.  Exemption Only Applies if Rental Unit is in Compliance with Applicable Laws and
Regulations

205.  Application for Exemption Determination.

206. Issuing an Administrative Decision on Exemption Status

207. Challenging a Rental Unit’s Exempt Status.

Chapter 3: RENT BOARD
Chapter 4: REGISTRATION & FEES

400. Purpose

401. Establishment of Base Rent

402. Required Rent Registration

403. Changes in Exempt Status
404. Notification of Changes of Name or Address of Landlord and/or Property Manager

405.  Enrollment with the Richmond Rent Program
406. Failure of a Landlord to Enroll or File

407-415 (RESERVED)

Page 3 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

416.
417.
418.
4109.

420.

421.

Authorization of Petitions for Rent Withholding.
Parties
Board Action in lieu of Tenant Petition

Failure to Comply with Reporting Requirements Set Forth in Richmond Municipal Code
Section 11.100.060(s)

Compliance with Reporting Requirements Set Forth in Richmond Municipal Code
Section 11.100.060(s), Prior to a Hearing

Decisions on Tenant Petitions for Rent Withholding.

418-423 (RESERVED)

424,

Escrow Account for Rent Withholdings

Chapter 5: ELLIS: REGARDING THE WITHDRAWAL OF RENTAL UNITS FROM

500.

501.

502.

503.

504.

505.

506.

507.

508.

THE RENTAL MARKET
Purpose and Scope
Definitions

Restrictions and Responsibilities Concerning Withdrawn Accommaodations.

Notice Requirements

Financial Mitigation of Adverse Impact on Displaced Persons
Recordation of Notice Regarding Continued Applicability of Controls
Fees Payable to the City of Richmond or Richmond Rent Board
Eviction Requirements

Severability

Chapter 6:  ANNUAL GENERAL ADJUSTMENTS OF MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

600.

601.

602.

RENTS

Purpose
Conditions for taking Annual General Adjustment

Banking

Page 4 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

603. Notices of Rent Increase

604. (RESERVED)
605. Annual General Adjustment Order for 2017
606. Annual General Adjustment Order for 2018

Chapter 7:  VACANCY RENT INCREASES

700. New Maximum Allowable Rent

701. Vacancy Rent Levels

702. Voluntary and Non-Voluntary Vacancies

703. No Vacancy Rent Increase for Original Occupants

704. Increase and Decrease Petitions

705.  Fraud or Intentional Misrepresentation

706. Subletting

707. Rent Level following an Owner Move-In Notice or Eviction

Chapter 8: PETITION PROCESS & HEARING PROCEDURES

800. (RESERVED)

801. Petitions

802. Previous Recent Hearing

803.  No Petition Filing Fee

804. Proper Filing of the Petition

805. Petition and Noticing Procedures
806. Supplemental Information

807. Parties

808. Notices to Opposing Parties and Board
809. Response to Petition

810. (RESERVED)

811. Consolidation

Page 5 of 84

ITEM G-4



City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

812.
813.

Confidentiality
Expedited Hearings

814 - 820. (RESERVED)

821.
822.
823.
824.
825.
826.
827.
828.
829.
830.
831.
832.
833.
834.
835.
836.
837.
838.

Hearing

Hearing Examiner

Evidence and Standard of Proof
Board Action

Notice of Hearing

Continuances

Disqualification of Hearing Examiner or Board Member

Subpoenas

Stipulations

(RESERVED)

Ex-Parte Communications
Agreement Prior to Hearing
Open Hearings

Rights of Parties

Hearing Record
Availability of Record
Notice of Decision

Finality of Decision

839 — 840 (RESERVED)

841.
842.
843.
844.
845.
846.

Right of Appeal

Appeal Process

Appeal Filing Fee

Time for Decision

Conditions for Obtaining Individual Rent Adjustments

Notice for Rent Increases

Page 6 of 84

ITEM G-4



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

847.
848.
849.
850.
851.
852.
853.
854.
855.
856.
857.

Effective Date for Rent Decrease

Compliance Hearings

Board Initiated Hearings

(RESERVED)

Deposit of Disputed Rents into Escrow

Standards to Be Applied to Escrow Determinations

Requiring Deposit of Disputed Rents into Escrow Pending Hearing
Establishment of Escrow Accounts Pending Appeal

Landlord's Compliance with Rent Overcharge Refund Order Subject to Appeal
Disbursement of Funds Held in Escrow

Effects of Escrow Accounts on Eviction Actions

Chapter 9: STANDARDS FOR INDIVIDUAL MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE RENT

900.
901.
902.
903.
904.
905.

ADJUSTMENTS
(RESERVED)
Purpose
Procedure
Changes in Number of Tenants
Changes in Space or Services

Maintenance of Net Operating Income (MNOI) Fair Return Standard

906- 910 (Reserved)

911.
912.

Overcharges and Other Violations

Petition to Obtain Previously Lost Annual General Adjustments (AGAS)

Chapter 10: JUST CAUSE REQUIRED FOR EVICTION

1000.

1001.

1002.

10083.

Purpose
Notices of Termination of Tenancy or Change in Terms of Tenancy — All Rental Units
Termination of a Tenancy for Breach of Lease

Termination of a Tenancy for Engaging in Criminal Activity, including Drug-related
Criminal Activity

Page 7 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

1004. Termination of a Tenancy for Creating a Nuisance

1005. Substantial Damage to the Rental Unit

1006. Illegal Use of the Rental Unit or the Property on which the Rental Unit is located
1007. Victims of Certain Criminal Activity

1008. Requirement to File the Written Warning Notice to Cease with the Rent Board

CHAPTER 11. REMEDIES
CHAPTER 12. JUDICIAL REVIEW

Note to the reader: These Regulations are intended to help clarify the meaning of the Richmond
Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance (Richmond Municipal
Code Chapter 11.100) and to explain how it will be implemented. However, a full understanding
of the meaning of any individual regulation or set of regulations may require knowledge of both
the Regulations and the Rent Ordinance and may also require knowledge of relevant aspects of
State and Federal law. Rent Board staff will assist the public in understanding how to use and
follow the regulations. Such assistance is not legal advice.

Page 8 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Chapter 1: PURPOSE
100. Purpose of the Regulations of the Richmond Rent Board

The Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance
(Richmond Municipal Code Chapter 11.100) (“Ordinance”) governs the actions and regulations
of the Richmond Rent Board. Section 11.100.060 (f) “Rules and Regulations” directs the Board
to “issue and follow such rules and regulations, including those contained in this Chapter, as will
further the purposes of the Chapter.”

The Regulations of the Richmond Rent Board are intended to further the purposes of the
Ordinance by establishing the standards and procedures the Board will follow in order to
implement the Ordinance. The Regulations are intended to help clarify the meaning of the
Ordinance and explain how it will be implemented. However, a full understanding of the
meaning of any individual regulation or set of regulations may require knowledge of both the
Regulations and the Ordinance and may also require knowledge of relevant aspects of State and
Federal law.

Like all local ordinances, the Ordinance operates within the framework established by the laws
of the State of California and the Constitution of the United States of America. Under Richmond
Municipal Section 11.100.060 (r) “Conforming Regulations,” should any part of the Ordinance
be “declared invalid or unenforceable by decision of a court of competent jurisdiction or
rendered invalid or unenforceable by state or federal legislation,” then the Board is empowered
to “enact replacement regulations consistent with the intent and purpose of the invalidated
provision and applicable law.”

[Adopted February 21, 2018]

Page 9 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Chapter 2: APPLICABILITY
200. Purpose

The purpose of this Chapter 2 is to describe those categories of properties which are exempt from
the Ordinance and to provide a process and procedure for those Controlled Rental Units seeking
to establish an exemption from this Ordinance.

[Formerly Regulation 17-01; Adopted November 15, 2017]

201. Rental Units Exempt from both the Rent Control (R.M.C § 11.100.070) and Just
Cause from Eviction (R.M.C § 11.100.050) Provisions of the Ordinance

A. Rental Units in hotels, motels, inns, tourist homes and rooming and boarding houses that are
rented primarily to transient guests for a period of fewer than 14 days;

B. Rental Units in any hospital, convent, monastery, extended medical care facility, asylum, or
non-profit home for the aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an accredited institution
of higher education;

C. Rental Units for which there is a Temporary Tenancy, as defined in R.M.C 8§ 11.100.030(q);

D. Rental Units that are lawful and in compliance with the Small, Second Unit Ordinance of the
City (R.M.C § 11.15.04) if the Primary Residence is occupied by the property owner; and

E. Rental Units where the Rental Unit is the Primary Residence of the property owner and the
property owner shares with a Tenant(s) a bathroom or kitchen.

[Formerly Regulation 17-03; Adopted July 19, 2017]

202. Governmentally Subsidized Rental Units Exempt from the Rent Control Provisions
of the Ordinance

The following rental units are exempt from the rent control (RMC 11.100.070), but not the just
cause for eviction (RMC 11.100.050) provisions of the Ordinance.

A. Rental units in which a tenant household holds a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher and
where the rent not does exceed the Payment Standard as published by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development.

B. Rental units for which the rent is subsidized by the Project-Based Section 8 Program

C. Rental units that are “rent restricted” in a Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program Project.
“Rent Restricted” means the rent charged for the unit is affordable for a qualifying Tenant
pursuant to the Regulatory Agreement.

D. Rental units for which the rent is subsidized by the Section 202 Supportive Housing for the
Elderly Program

Page 10 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

E. Rental units that are “rent restricted” under a regulatory agreement between a governmental
agency and a property owner. “Rent Restricted” means the rent charged for the unit is
affordable for a qualifying Tenant pursuant to the Regulatory Agreement.

[Formerly Regulation 17-01; Adopted November 15, 2017]

203. Other Rental Units Exempt from the Rent Control Provisions of the Ordinance

In addition to rental units that are exempt from rent control under R.M.C § 11.100.100.030
(d)(1)(2)(4) (5) and (6), rental units which a governmental unit, agency or authority owns,
operates or manages are exempt from the rent control provisions of the Ordinance. Section
11.100.030 (d)(3), Richmond Municipal Code.

[Formerly Regulation 17-01; Adopted November 15, 2017]

204. Exemption Only Applies if Rental Unit is in Compliance with Applicable Laws and
Regulations

The exemption from rent control (RMC 11.100.070) as described in Section 202 and Section 203
of this Regulation only applies so long as the rental unit is in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations, and for which there is in effect (a) a tenant with a Section 8 Housing Choice
Voucher in the rental unit, (b) the rental unit is in a Project-Based Section 8 Program, and/or (c)
the rental unit is rent restricted under a regulatory agreement and/or declaration of restrictive
covenants.

Nothing in this section shall preclude tenants residing in rental units described in Section 202 of
this Regulation from seeking advice or assistance from the Rent Program concerning applicable
provisions of the Ordinance and utilizing the remedies provided in the Ordinance to the extent
permitted by Federal, State, and local law.

[Formerly Regulation 17-01; Adopted November 15, 2017]

205. Application for Exemption Determination

Notwithstanding Regulation 403, a Landlord may request that an administrative decision be
rendered regarding the applicability of R.M.C. 11.100 et. seq (Fair Rent, Just Cause For
Eviction, and Homeowner Protection Ordinance) on a property or unit owned or occupied by the
requesting party. All requests for an administrative decision regarding exemption must be made
on an approved Rent Program form. The Landlord must complete the approved form and attach
sufficient information and documentation demonstrating a claimed exemption. The Landlord
shall have the burden of proof of demonstrating a claimed exemption.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]

206. Issuing an Administrative Decision on Exemption Status

Page 11 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

A

In rendering an administrative decision, the Executive Director or assigned staff member
may conduct an independent investigation into the underlying facts and rely on information
and documentation obtained thereof.

All administrative decisions under this Regulation must be made in writing, provide an
explanation of the basis for the decision with citations to R.M.C. 11.100 et.seq (Fair Rent,
Just Cause For Eviction, and Homeowner Protection Ordinance), and adequately describe the
evidence relied on in reaching the decision.

All administrative decisions under this Regulation must be rendered within 30 calendar days
from the date of application. The Rent Program shall notify the Landlord and all Tenants in
the affected unit, of its exemption determination.

If the Landlord disagrees with the Executive Director or assigned staff member’s
administrative decision, the Landlord may, within 15 calendar days from the date of the
administrative decision plus any additional time permitted under California Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1013(a), as amended, file a request for hearing on exemption status. The
hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the rules and procedures set forth in Chapter 8
of these Regulations.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]

207.

A

Challenging a Rental Unit’s Exempt Status

Where a Rental Unit has been determined to be or treated as an exempt Rental Unit, a Tenant
occupying said Rental Unit or his or her designee, may challenge the Rental Unit’s
exemption status by filing a Tenant petition for rent withholding, pursuant to Chapter 4 of
these Regulations. Such a petition shall not be granted if the challenged Rental Unit has been
determined exempt pursuant to Regulation 206, unless the Tenant can demonstrate that there
has been a material change in facts, or that the information supplied by the Landlord in
support of the exemption was misleading and/or false.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]

Page 12 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Chapter 3: RENT BOARD

Page 13 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Chapter 4: REGISTRATION AND FEES

400. Purpose

The Rent Board finds that in order to monitor compliance with Annual General Adjustments and
provide for Individual Rent Adjustments as required under the Rent Ordinance it is essential that
registration of Rental Units include information on Base Rents and notification of increases. The
purpose of this Chapter 4 is to enable the Rent Board to monitor and control allowable rents as
mandated by the Ordinance, and to charge and collect fees for the purposes of covering the cost
of administering the Ordinance. All registration requirements are subject to California Civil
Code Section 1947.7 et.seq, as may be amended.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
[Amended June 20, 2018]

401. Establishment of Base Rent

A. The rent in effect on July 21, 2015 is the Base Rent. If there was no rent in effect on that
date, the Base Rent is the rent charged on the first date that rent was charged after that date.

B. For tenancies that commenced after July 21, 2015, the Base Rent is the initial rental rate in
effect on the date the tenancy begins. “Initial rental rate” is defined under Section 700(B).

[Adopted February 21, 2018]

402. Required Rent Registration

A. A Rental Unit is properly registered in accordance with this Chapter if the Landlord or
Landlord's representative has:

(1) Filed with the Board completed registration statements on the form(s) provided by the
Board for the unit and all the units in the same property that include:

a. The addresses of all units on the same property;

b. The name and address of the Landlord and/or property manager;

c. The date the current tenancy began and, for all tenancies that began after
December 30, 2016, an explanation of the circumstances of the termination of the
previous tenancy sufficiently detailed to demonstrate whether the unit qualifies
for a vacancy rent increase or not, as described in Chapter 7 VVacancy Rent
Increases;

Page 14 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

C.

d. The Base Rent currently in effect for each individual unit and the housing services
included in the rent or the reason the Rental Unit is exempt from rent control and
has no current Base Rent;

. The number of Tenants occupying the unit and Tenants names; and

f.  Such other information reasonably requested by the Rent Program.

(2) Paid to the City of Richmond the Rental Housing Fee, Business License Tax, and any
penalties due for the unit and all the units in the same property; and

(3) Filed with the Board, for the unit and all the units in the same property, notification of all
termination of tenancies, subsequent changes in the provision of Housing Services, and
rent increases if required pursuant to Regulation 17-10.

In designating a Rental Unit as properly registered, the Board's intent is to facilitate the rent
registration and individual adjustment of Maximum Allowable Rent processes and the
dissemination of information regarding the registration of Rental Units. Such designation
shall not be construed as the Board's certification of the lawful Base Rent, current Maximum
Allowable Rent or any other information provided on the rent registration statement. Nothing
in this Regulation shall preclude the Board nor any person from challenging the accuracy of
any information provided in any registration statement or declaration in the context of any
proceeding or action.

A Landlord shall be found in substantial compliance with registration requirements when:

(1) The Landlord has made a good faith effort to comply with the Ordinance and
regulation concerning registration sufficient to reasonably carry out the intent and
purpose of the Ordinance and Regulations; and

(2) The Landlord has cured any defect in compliance in a timely manner after receiving
notice of a deficiency from the Board.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
[Amended June 20, 2018]

403. Changes in Exempt Status

A

Within sixty (60) calendar days of the date a Rental Unit formerly exempt from the rent
control provisions of the Ordinance (Section 11.100.030(d) (1)-(6)) becomes a Controlled
Rental Unit under the Ordinance, the Landlord shall file an initial registration statement, or
an amended registration statement if an initial registration statement has been previously
filed, for the Rental Unit.

. Within sixty (60) calendar days of the date a Controlled Rental Unit becomes exempt from

rent control under the Ordinance, the Landlord shall notify the Board in writing of the
exempt status of the Rental Unit and the basis for the exemption.

Page 15 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

C. Within thirty (30) calendar days after the filing of a new rent registration statement, the
Board shall provide a true and correct copy of said statement to the occupant of the
respective unit.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
404. Notification of Changes of Name or Address of Landlord and/or Property Manager

A. Within sixty (60) calendar days of any change in the owner and/or property manager of a
Rental Unit, the Landlord shall notify the Board in writing of the change.

B. Within sixty (60) calendar days of any change in the address of the owner and/or property
manager of a Rental Unit, the Landlord shall notify the Board in writing of the change.

C. The Board shall send all notices to the Landlord at the most current address provided by the
Landlord. Failure to receive a notice as a result of noncompliance with this section shall not
be a good cause for purposes of waiving penalties owed to the Board.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]

405. Enrollment with the Richmond Rent Program

Prior to filing with the Board, or serving any Tenant, any notice of a rent increase, change in
terms of tenancy or termination of tenancy, a Landlord must enroll with the Rent Board all of a
Landlord’s Controlled Rental Units and those Rental Units set forth in Section 2 of this
Regulation. Absent extraordinary circumstances, the enrollment form must be completed and
submitted online, using the form on the Rent Program website.

[Formerly Regulation 17-10; adopted September 20, 2017]
406. Failure of a Landlord to Enroll or File

If a Landlord has not enrolled the Landlord’s Rental Units with the Board as provided in this
Regulation, and/or has not filed with the Board a notice of a rent increase, change in terms of
tenancy or termination of tenancy as provided in this Regulation, a Tenant in an unlawful
detainer action may obtain from a Rent Program staff member a Certification stating that to the
best of the knowledge of the Rent Board staff, the Rental Unit was not enrolled and/or the
required notice was not filed with the Rent Board in accordance with this Regulation.

[Formerly Regulation 17-10; adopted September 20, 2017]
407-415. (RESERVED)
416. Authorization of Petitions for Rent Withholding

A. Tenants seeking authorization to withhold rent pursuant to R.M.C §11.100.060(s), must file a
petition provided by the Rent Program. If the petition to withhold rent is based on a
Landlord’s failure to pay the Residential Rental Housing Fee and such a petition implicates

Page 16 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

the exemption status of the challenged Rental Unit or property, the Tenant shall include a
brief statement describing the basis of the petition and the evidence relied on to substantiate
the assertion that there has been a failure to pay the Residential Rental Housing Fee.

B. A copy of any rent withholding petition based on a failure to pay the Residential Rental
Housing Fee that implicates the exemption status of the challenged Rental Unit or property,
shall be forwarded to the Executive Director and the Executive Director shall investigate or
direct a Rent Program Staff member(s) to investigate the basis for the petition and prepare a
report stating the findings of the investigation. Such investigation may include, but is not
limited to, inspection of the property, investigation of public’s records, and any other
reasonable means ascertaining the status of the property.

C. Submittal of petitions, conducting of hearings, and requesting appeals must be performed in
a manner consistent with Chapter 8 of these Regulations.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]
417. Parties

Specific only to petitions brought under Regulation 416 or Regulation 206, the parties to a
proceeding on a rent withholding petition shall be the petitioner, the Tenants of any affected unit,
the Landlord, and the Rent Board as represented by the administrative staff member(s).

[Adopted June 20, 2018]
418. Board Action in lieu of Tenant Petition

Pursuant to R.M.C § 11.100.060(s) and this Regulation, in lieu of the a Tenant petition filed
under Regulation 416, the Board is authorized to initiate the rent withholding process or may
continue with a proceeding initiated by a Tenant even if the petitioner requests a dismissal, or
fails to prosecute the petition.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]

419. Failure to Comply with Reporting Requirements Set Forth in Richmond Municipal
Code Section 11.100.060(s)

In determining whether a Landlord has failed to comply with reporting requirements set out in
Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.060(s), the Hearing Officer shall apply the criteria for
substantial compliance consistent with Civil Code 1947.7, et.seq, as amended.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]

Page 17 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

420. Compliance with Reporting Requirements Set Forth in Richmond Municipal Code
Section 11.100.060(s), Prior to a Hearing

Prior to the hearing, if the Hearing Examiner determines that the Landlord has complied with the
reporting requirements set out in Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.060(s), and as
specifically alleged by the petition or the action, the petition shall be dismissed and all parties
shall be notified of the dismissal.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]
421. Decisions on Tenant Petitions for Rent Withholding

A. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Hearing Examiner shall issue a written decision in a
manner consistent with Chapter 8 of these Regulations.

B. The Hearing Examiner’s written decision shall contain findings of fact and legal conclusions.
If the Hearing Examiner determines that the Landlord has willfully and knowingly failed to
meet the reporting obligations set forth in Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.060(s),
and/or specified in the Petition, the Hearing Examiner shall issue an order directing the
Landlord to comply with said reporting obligations, including payment of the Residential
Rental Housing Fee, and authorize the petitioning Tenant(s) to withhold payment of rent
beginning with the next regularly scheduled rent payment after the effective date of the order,
until such time as all affected units on the property are brought into compliance. Any rent
withheld pursuant to this section may be paid into escrow pursuant to Regulation 424,

C. Rent withholding orders shall become effective 30 days following the date on which the
decision is mailed to the parties unless, within that time, the Landlord complies with the
reporting requirements alleged to have been violated or asserts a timely appeal. Where a
Landlord files an appeal, the rent withholding order will be stayed pending appeal.

D. Notwithstanding the appeals process set forth in Chapter 8 of these Regulations, in the event
that the Rent Board initiates a hearing pursuant to Regulation 849 or is a party to a hearing
based on a petition relating to reporting requirements set forth in Richmond Municipal Code
Section 11.100.060(s), a Hearing Examiner’s decision on the issues presented shall be
considered final and the parties administrative remedies deemed exhausted.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]
418-423. (RESERVED)
424. Escrow Account for Rent Withholdings

A. Consistent with Regulations 852 through 857, where a Hearing Examiner issues an order to
withhold rent, the Hearing Examiner may also order that all withheld rent be paid into an
escrow account maintained by the Board to be collected and held until such a time the
Landlord complies with the Hearing Examiner’s decision. When the Hearing Examiner has
received sufficient proof that the Landlord has complied with the Hearing Examiner’s order,

Page 18 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

the Hearing Examiner shall determine what, if any, portion of the withheld rent is owed to
the Landlord and shall have the monies distributed from the escrow account accordingly.

B. In no event shall the amount of rent ordered to be withheld and deposited into escrow be
construed as a determination of the lawfulness of the amount of rent being demanded or
charged by the Landlord.

[Adopted June 20, 2018]

Chapter 5: ELLIS: REGARDING THE WITHDRAWAL OF RENTAL UNITS FROM
THE RENTAL MARKET

500. Purpose and Scope

A. The Rent Board of the City of Richmond hereby acts pursuant to Government Code Chapter
12.75 (commencing with Section 7060 et seq.) to establish certain requirements, procedures,
restrictions and mitigations concerning the withdrawal of residential Rental Units from rent
or lease in accordance with Government Code Section 7060. The Rent Board also acts to
protect the health, welfare and safety of its citizens. In adopting these provisions, it is the
intent of the Rent Board to accord Tenants the maximum protections which are available
pursuant to Government Code Section 7060 and to provide certain additional rights and
protections necessary to deal with the housing shortage in the City of Richmond.

B. Nothing in this Regulation shall otherwise diminish any power which currently exists or
which may hereafter exist in the City to grant or deny any entitlement to the use of, or
physical modifications to, real property, including, but not limited to, building, planning,
zoning and subdivision map approvals. Nothing in this Regulation shall entitle an owner of
property which has been withdrawn from rent or lease to any special consideration in the
granting of any entitlement to the use of said property, nor shall the fact that the property
may be vacant be considered as a basis for granting any requested change in use.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]

501. Definitions
For the purposes of this Chapter 5, the following words and phrases shall have the
meanings set forth below.

A. "Owner" means only the holder of record title having the entire legal and equitable title to the
property, or the successor in interest thereto. It shall not include the lessor, sublessor, agent
or representative of the Landlord. It is the intention of this Regulation to permit only the
"owner" as defined herein to have and exercise the privileges and responsibilities set forth in
this Regulation.

B. "Tenant" means any renter, Tenant, subtenant, lessee, or sublessee of a Rental Unit, or

successor to a Tenant’s interest, or any group of Tenants, subtenants, lessees, or sublessees of
any Rental Unit, or any other person entitled to the use or occupancy of such Rental Unit and

Page 19 of 84


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7060
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7060
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7060

City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

includes a former Tenant displaced by the withdrawal of an accommodation from rent or
lease.

C. "Accommodations” means either of the following:

(1) The Rental Units in any detached physical structure containing four or more residential
units.

(2) With respect to a detached physical structure containing three or fewer residential Rental
Units, the residential Rental Units in that structure and in any other structure located on
the same parcel of land, including any detached physical structure specified in
subparagraph (1).

D. "Rent control” means the system of controls on residential rents and evictions established
pursuant to the City of Richmond’s Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner
Protection Ordinance, including all amendments thereto, and any successor ordinance or
charter provision regulating residential rents in Richmond (“Fair Rent Ordinance.”)

E. "Withdrawal" means the eviction of all Tenants from all Rental Units on a particular property
through compliance with the requirements of this Regulation. Such withdrawal results in a
removal of Rental Units from the housing market under the terms and conditions set forth in
this Regulation, and as such is a limited form of removal by means other than conversion or
demolition. To the extent that owners of withdrawn units desire to convert such units to other
uses, including but not limited to condominiums, community apartments, stock cooperatives,
other forms of owner-occupancy, or other change in use, or to permanently remove them
from the rental housing market by demolition, or otherwise remove them by means other
than withdrawal, such owners must obtain all required permits and approvals from the City in
addition to complying with the provisions of this Regulation.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]

502. Restrictions and Responsibilities Concerning Withdrawn Accommodations

Any accommodations which have been withdrawn from rent or lease and which were subject to
rent control at the time of withdrawal shall be subject to the following conditions and restrictions
if said accommodation is again offered for rent or lease:

A. For all tenancies created after December 31, 2002, and commenced during either of the time
periods described in subsections (1) and (2) below, the accommodations shall be offered and
rented or leased at the lawful rent in effect at the time any notice of intent to withdraw the
accommodations was filed with the Rent Board plus annual general adjustments available
under the rent control system.

(1) The five-year period after any notice of intent to withdraw the accommodations is filed

with the Rent Board, whether or not the notice of intent is rescinded or the withdrawal of
the accommodations is completed pursuant to the notice of intent.

Page 20 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

B.

(2) The five-year period after the accommodations are withdrawn.

(3) This section shall prevail over any conflicting provision of law authorizing the Landlord to

establish the rental rate upon the initial hiring of the accommodations.

If the accommodations are offered again for rent or lease for residential purposes within two
years of the date the accommodations were withdrawn from rent or lease, the following
provisions shall apply:

1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

The owner of the accommaodations shall be liable to any Tenant who was displaced from
the property by said withdrawal for actual and punitive damages. Any action by a Tenant
pursuant to this paragraph shall be brought within three years of the Tenant’s
displacement. However, nothing in this paragraph shall preclude a Tenant from pursuing
any additional or alternative remedy available under law, including, but not limited to,
general damages. Nothing in this paragraph shall limit or otherwise affect any relocation
benefits to which the Tenant is entitled under any other law or ordinance.

The Board may institute a civil proceeding against any owner who has again offered
accommodations for rent or lease subject to this section for exemplary damages for
displacement of Tenants. Any action brought by the Board shall be brought within three
years of the withdrawal of the accommodations. Nothing in this section shall be
construed to limit any other powers of the Board to pursue litigation in any way involving
the subject property.

Any owner who offers accommodations again for rent or lease shall first offer the unit for
rent or lease to the Tenant displaced from that unit by the withdrawal, if the Tenant has
advised the owner in writing within 30 days of the displacement of his or her desire to
consider an offer to renew the tenancy and has furnished the owner with an address to
which that offer is to be directed. That Tenant or former Tenant may advise the owner at
any time during the period of eligibility for renewed tenancy of any change in address to
which the offer is to be directed. The owner shall also notify the Board of the owner’s
intent to again offer the accommodations for rent or lease at the time the Tenant is
notified. In addition to the notice required to be given to the Tenant, the Board shall be
deemed to be an agent of the Tenant and may request that an offer to renew the tenancy
be extended to the Tenant. However, nothing in this section shall be construed to relieve
the owner of the obligation to directly contact the Tenant or former Tenant and to advise
the Tenant that said accommodations are again offered for rent or lease. Notice shall be
on a Rent Program form.

If the owner offers the accommaodations for rent or lease pursuant to this Section 502(B),
and the Tenant has advised the owner of a desire to consider an offer to renew the
tenancy, then the owner shall offer to reinstitute a rental agreement or lease on terms
permitted by law to that displaced Tenant. The terms shall be substantially equivalent to
those formerly existing during the tenancy. This offer shall be deposited in the United
States mail, by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, addressed to the

Page 21 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

displaced Tenant at the address furnished to the owner as provided in this subsection, and
shall describe the terms of the offer. A copy of the notice with proof that it has been
mailed to the displaced Tenant shall be filed with the Board at the time notice is mailed to
the Tenant. The displaced Tenant shall have 30 days from the deposit of the offer in the
mail to accept by personal delivery of that acceptance or by deposit of the acceptance in
the United States mail by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid. The Board
upon learning of the owner’s intent to again offer the accommodation for rent or lease
shall also attempt to notify each Tenant by mail and may further publish notices or
advertisements in newspapers or use other reasonable means to attempt to notify the
Tenants of the availability of the accommodations.

C. An owner who offers accommodations again for rent or lease within ten years of the date on
which they are withdrawn shall notify the Board of an intention to offer the accommodations
again for residential rent or lease. A copy of the notice served on the Board shall also be
mailed by the owner to each Tenant at that Tenant’s last known address. The Board may also
attempt to notify each Tenant by mail and may further publish notices or advertisements in
newspapers or use other reasonable means to attempt to notify the Tenants of the availability
of the accommaodations. If the displaced Tenant so requests in writing within 30 days after
the owner has notified the Board of the intent to again offer the premises for rent or lease, the
owner shall offer to reinstitute a rental agreement or lease on terms permitted by law to that
displaced Tenant. In the event that the owner fails to comply with this subsection, the owner
shall be liable to any affected Tenant for general damages and punitive damages in an
amount which does not exceed the contract rent for six months.

If the accommodations are demolished, and new accommodations are constructed on the
same property, and offered for rent or lease within five years of the date the accommodations
were withdrawn from rent or lease, the newly constructed accommodations shall be subject
to rent control notwithstanding any provision of law which otherwise exempts newly
constructed units. The Board shall have the power to set rents which will provide a fair return
and the Landlord shall have the burden of establishing by competent evidence that the rent
schedule proposed by the Landlord is necessary to provide a fair return.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]
503. Notice Requirements

A. An owner who intends to withdraw an accommaodation from rent or lease shall provide the
following notices. None of the notices permitted or required by this Section 503 shall be
valid if served or filed prior to December 30, 2016.

(1) No less than 120 days prior to the date upon which the accommodation is to be
withdrawn, the owner shall provide written notice to each Tenant on the property of the
owner’s intent to withdraw said accommodation. Said notice shall contain a statement
that the accommaodation is withdrawn, that all of the accommodations on the parcel are
being withdrawn, the date upon which the accommaodation is to be withdrawn, that the
owner has paid all fees due the City or the Board, and a statement that all Tenants are

Page 22 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

entitled to a Relocation Payment and the amount thereof pursuant to the City’s Ordinance
concerning Relocation Requirements for Tenants of Residential Rental Units (Chapter
11.102, Richmond Municipal Code) and implementing resolution (“Relocation
Ordinance/Resolution”). The owner shall determine whether a member of the household
of each unit can speak English and seek appropriate assistance in communicating the
importance of the contents of the notice to any household whose members cannot speak
English. The notice shall be served on each Tenant by either personal service or certified
mail, return receipt requested. The notice shall advise the Tenant of the Tenant’s rights
to regain possession of the premises and to damages as set forth in Section 502 of this
Chapter. A copy of this notice shall be filed with the Board. The notice shall be
accompanied by stamped postcards addressed to the owner and the Board by which the
Tenant can represent whether he or she qualifies for relocation assistance. The notice
shall be on a Rent Program form. A notice stating the owner’s intent to withdraw the
accommodation from rent or lease shall not be valid unless the Tenants of all of the units
on the property are also served with notice that each of their units is to be withdrawn
from rent or lease and unless all fees due the City or the Board pursuant to Section 506 of
this Regulation have been paid.

(2) A notice of termination of tenancy having an effective date no earlier than 120 days after
the date of service shall also be served on each Tenant at the same time the notice stating
the intent to withdraw the premises from rent or lease is served on the Tenant.

(3) Not less than 120 days prior to the date upon which the accommodations are to be
withdrawn, the owner shall notify the Board of the intention to withdraw those
accommodations from rent or lease. The notice shall be on a Rent Program form, and
shall contain statements, under penalty of perjury, providing information on the number
of accommaodations, the address or location of those accommodations, the name(s) of the
Tenant(s) of the accommodations and the rent applicable to each Rental Unit. The notice
required to be filed by this subsection shall be maintained by the Board in files other than
those maintained pursuant to the Fair Rent Ordinance. The information contained in the
notice required by this Section 503(A) respecting the name(s) of the Tenant(s), the rent
applicable to any unit, or the total number of units, is confidential and shall be treated as
confidential information for the purposes of the Information Practices Act of 1977, as
contained in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1798) of Title 1.8 of Part 4 of Division
3 of the Civil Code. The Board shall, to the extent required by the preceding sentence, be
considered an "agency" as defined by subdivision (b) of Section 1798.3 of the Civil
Code.

(4) At the time the notice specified in Section 503(A)(3) is filed with the Board the owner
shall record with the County Recorder a memorandum of the notice required by Section
503(A)(3) summarizing its provisions, other than the confidential provisions, on a Rent
Program form. The owner shall also file and record a certificate, on a Rent Program form,
that actions have been initiated as required by this Chapter and other applicable law to
terminate any existing tenancies. If the owner has satisfied the requirements of Section
503(A)(3) and this Section 503(A)(4), the date upon which the accommodations are
withdrawn from rent or lease for the purposes of this Regulation is 120 days from the

Page 23 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

date of delivery in person or by first-class mail of that notice to the Board. If the notice
has not been given and recorded as specified herein, the date upon which the
accommaodations are withdrawn shall be 60 days after the memorandum summarizing the
notice is recorded with the County Recorder.

(5) At the time notice is given to the Board as required in Section 503(A)(3), the owner shall
notify any Tenant to be displaced that the Board has been notified pursuant to Section
503(A)(3), that the notice specified the name of the Tenant and the amount of rent paid
by the Tenant as an occupant of the accommodation and the amount of rent the owner
specified in the notice to the Board. The notice shall also contain a statement of the
Tenant’s rights to regain possession and to damages, in the event the accommodation is
again offered for rent or lease, under Section 502 of this Chapter. A copy of the notice
shall be filed with the Board with proof of service upon each Tenant.

(6) Not less than 120 days prior to the date upon which the accommodations are to be
withdrawn, the owner shall provide two copies of a notice containing language
substantially identical to the following: "I assert that | have lived in this unit at least one
year prior to having been notified that | am to be evicted from this unit under the City of
Richmond’s Ellis Act Policy. | further assert that | am a disabled person under the
meaning of California Government Code Section 12955.3. It is my understanding that |
am entitled to one year’s notice prior to surrendering this unit to its owner." With this
notice, the Tenant shall be enabled by the owner to assert to both the owner and the
Board that he/she/they are disabled.

(7) Not less than 120 days prior to the date upon which the accommodations are to be
withdrawn, the owner shall provide two copies of a notice containing language
substantially identical to the following: "I assert that | have lived in this unit at least one
year prior to having been notified that I am to be evicted from this unit under the City of
Richmond’s Ellis Act Policy. | further assert that I am 62 years or older. It is my
understanding that | am entitled to one year’s notice prior to surrendering this unit to its
owner." With this notice, the Tenant shall be enabled by the owner to assert to both the
owner and the Board that he/she/they are 62 years or older.

(8) Not less than 120 days prior to the date upon which the accommodations are to be
withdrawn, the owner shall provide two copies of a notice containing language
substantially identical to the following: "I assert that | have lived in this unit at least one
year prior to having been notified that I am to be evicted from this unit under the City of
Richmond’s Ellis Act Policy. | further assert that I have minor children residing in the
household. It is my understanding that | am entitled to one year’s notice prior to
surrendering this unit to its owner." With this notice, the Tenant shall be enabled by the
owner to assert to both the owner and the Board that he/she/they have minor children
residing in the household.

(9) Not less than 120 days prior to the date upon which the accommodations are to be
withdrawn, the owner shall provide two copies of a notice containing language

Page 24 of 84


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12955.3

City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

substantially identical to the following: "I assert that | have lived in this unit at least one
year prior to having been notified that | am to be evicted from this unit under the City of
Richmond’s Ellis Act Policy. | further assert that my household is a lower income
household as that term is defined in California Health and Safety Code, section 50079.5.
It is my understanding that | am entitled to one year’s notice prior to surrendering this
unit to its owner." With this notice, the Tenant shall be enabled by the owner to assert to
both the owner and the Board that he/she/resides in a lower income household.

If the Tenant is i) disabled, at least 62 years of age, has minor children residing in the
household and/or the Tenant’s household is a lower income household and (ii) has lived
in his/her/their accommodations for at least one year prior to the date of delivery of the
notice of intent to withdraw to the Board, then the date of withdrawal of the
accommodations of that Tenant shall be extended to one year after the date of delivery of
the notice to the Board, provided that the Tenant gives written notice of his, her, or their
entitlement to an extension to the owner within 60 days of the date of delivery to the
Board of the notice of intent to withdraw.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]
504. Financial Mitigation of Adverse Impact on Displaced Persons

A. The Tenants of any residential Rental Unit who are required to move as a result of the
Landlord’s withdrawal of the accommodation from rent or lease shall be entitled to
Permanent Relocation Payment as provided in the Richmond Relocation Ordinance (RMC
11.102.)

B. The Landlord may rescind the notice of intent to withdraw the accommodation from rent or
lease and the notice of termination of tenancy prior to any release of Permanent Relocation
Payment to Eligible Tenants (as those terms are defined in Chapter 11.102, Richmond
Municipal Code) by serving written notice stating such rescission on the Tenants.
Subsequent to the release of any portion of the Permanent Relocation Payment to an Eligible
Tenant, the Landlord may rescind the notice of intent to withdraw the accommodation from
rent or lease and the notice of termination of tenancy only upon the written agreement of the
Tenants to remain in possession of the Rental Unit. If the Eligible Tenants remain in
possession of the Rental Units after service of a Landlord’s written notice of rescission of the
eviction, the Tenants shall provide an accounting to the Landlord of the amount of the
Permanent Relocation Payment expended, return to the Landlord that portion of the
Permanent Relocation Payment not expended, and assign to the Landlord all rights to recover
the amount of Permanent Relocation Payment paid to third parties.

Page 25 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Failure of the owner to make any payment specified herein shall be a defense to any action to
recover possession of a Rental Unit based upon the owner’s intent to withdraw the
accommaodation from rent or lease. In addition, if Tenants of a Rental Unit who qualify for
relocation assistance have vacated the unit as a result of a notice of intent to withdraw the
accommaodation from rent or lease, and the owner fails to make any payment specified
herein, the owner shall be liable to the Tenants for three times the amount of the payment as
well as reasonable attorneys fees.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]

505. Recordation of Notice Regarding Continued Applicability of Controls Within 20
days of receipt of a notice issued by an owner pursuant to Section 503(A) of this Chapter, the
Board may cause to be recorded with the County Recorder a notice which shall recite the fact
that the Richmond Rent Board has determined to apply the constraints adopted pursuant to
Government Code Section 7060.2 to successors in interest to the subject property. The notice
shall specifically describe the real property where the accommodations are located, the date upon
which the owner will withdraw the accommodations from rent or lease and the dates during
which the constraints adopted pursuant to Government Code Section 7060.2 shall apply. If the
date upon which the accommaodations are to be withdrawn is subsequently altered or modified,
the Board may record an amended notice. The filing of the notice described in this section shall
not be construed as a finding by the Board that the actual or proposed withdrawal of the
accommodations has been approved by the Board.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]

506. Fees Payable to the City of Richmond or Richmond Rent Board The City or the
Board may establish fees which shall be paid by any owner who exercises the privilege to
withdraw accommodations from rent or lease. The City or the Board may set the fee so as to
recover all costs of administering this Chapter. The fees shall be paid prior to the service of the
notice set forth in Section 503 of this Chapter. In addition, prior to the service of the notice set
forth in Section 503 of this Chapter, the owner shall have paid all business license taxes, Rental
Inspection Fees, and Fire Prevention Services Fees, and all fees connected to the Fair Rent
Ordinance, such as the Rental Housing Fee and any inspection fees. Failure to pay the fees prior
to service of the notice shall invalidate the notice.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]

507. Eviction Requirements In any action to recover possession of an accommodation
subject to the terms of this Regulation, it shall be a defense if the owner has not fully satisfied all
of the requirements of this Regulation including, but not limited to, compliance with all notice
requirements, payment of fees to the City or the Board, and payment of the Relocation Payment
to displaced Tenants.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]

Page 26 of 84


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7060.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7060.2

City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations
508. Severability If any provision of this Regulation is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, this invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this Regulation which

can be given effect without the invalid provision and therefore the provisions of this Regulation
are severable.

[Formerly Regulation 17-07; Adopted September 20, 2017]

Page 27 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Chapter 6: ANNUAL GENERAL ADJUSTMENTS OF MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE
RENTS

600. Purpose

The Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause For Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance
(Chapter 11.100, Richmond Municipal Code) provides that no later than June 30 of each year the
Board shall announce the percentage by which Rent for eligible Rental Units will be generally
adjusted effective September 1 of that year. It further provides that the Annual General
Adjustment shall equal one-hundred (100%) percent of the percentage increase in the Consumer
Price Index (All Urban Consumers, San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose region, or any other
successor designation of that index that may later be adopted by the U.S. Bureau of Labor
Statistics)(CPI) as reported and published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor
Statistics, for the 12-month period ending as of March of the current year.

[Formerly Regulation 17-05; adopted June 21, 2017]
601. Conditions for taking Annual General Adjustment
A. A Landlord may increase Rent by the Annual General Adjustment for, only if the Landlord:

(1) Files a copy of the notice of the rent increase with the Board before serving the
Tenant with such notice;

(2) Serves the Tenant with a legally required notice of a rent increase under State law;

(3) Files with the Board a copy of the proof of service of such notice to the Tenant.
Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.060(s)(1); and

(4) The landlord is otherwise entitled to the adjustment pursuant to the provisions of the
Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause For Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance,
and any other applicable Regulation.

[Formerly Regulation 17-05; adopted June 21, 2017]
602. Banking

A. A Landlord may, but is not required to, increase Rent by the Annual General Adjustment as
provided by Chapter 6 of these Regulations.

B. To the extent a Landlord has not increased Rent up to the Maximum Lawful Rent level, the
Landlord shall have the ability to apply deferred Annual General Adjustment rent increases;
however, the net rent increase in any one twelve-month period shall not exceed the current
year Annual General Adjustment Rent Increase plus five percent (5.0%) of the Rent charged
at any time during the preceding 12-month period.

Page 28 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

C.

F.

In the event that a current year’s Annual General Adjustment exceeds five percent (5.0%), a
Landlord may not apply any deferred Annual General Adjustment increases until the next
Annual General Adjustment increase less than five percent (5.0%) is effective.

“Banking” of Annual General Adjustment Increases shall be calculated based on simple
addition, without compounding. For example, an increase of three percent (3.0%) plus three
point four percent (3.4%) is equal to a combined increase of six point four percent (6.4%),
not six point five six percent (6.56%).

Nothing in this Regulation shall preclude a Landlord from petitioning for a Rent Increase in
excess of the Annual General Adjustment.

This Regulation shall become effective September 1, 2018.

[Formerly Regulation 17-09; adopted December 20, 2017]

603.

A

Notices of Rent Increase

Controlled Rental Units.

Landlords of Controlled Rental Units, as defined in the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction
and Homeowner Protection Ordinance (Chapter 11.100, Richmond Municipal Code, Section
11.100. 030 (d), except those Rental Units that are “exempt” pursuant to Rent Board
regulation, or are described in 603(B) of this Regulation, shall file with the Board within two
(2) business days after the Landlord has served a Tenant with a notice of a rent increase, a
copy of such notice with a proof of service, including time and date of service, using, absent
extraordinary circumstances, the appropriate online form on the Rent Program website. If a
Landlord does not file with the Board the notice and proof of service as provided in this
Section, the rent increase shall be deemed null and void.

Rental Units Exempt from the Rent Control Provisions of the Fair Rent, Just Cause for
Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance.

Landlords of Rental Units (a) which a government unit, agency, or authority owns, operates
or manages, (b) in which governmentally subsidized Tenants reside if applicable federal or
state law or administrative regulation specifically exempts such Units from rent control, (c)
exempt from rent control pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California
Civil Code, section 1954.52) or (d) that are permitted, small second housing units built in
compliance with the Small, Second Unit Ordinance of the City of Richmond (Section
15.04.810, RMC) [Section 11.100.030 (d) (3)(4) and (5)] are not required to file with the
Board a copy of a notice of rent increase.

[Formerly Regulation 17-10; adopted September 20, 2017]

604. (RESERVED)

Page 29 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

605.

Annual General Adjustment Order for 2017

The percentage increase in the CPI from 2016-2017 is 3.4%, and thus the following Annual
General Adjustment applies:

A

B.

The 2017 Annual General Adjustment is not to exceed 3.4%.

The cumulative increase in the Maximum Allowable Rent as defined in Section
11.100.030(g), RMC, for tenancies in effect prior to September 1, 2015, is 6.56%.

A Landlord may increase Rent by the 2017 Annual General Adjustment for tenancies in
effect prior to September 1, 2016, only if the Landlord is in compliance with Regulation 601.

Within ten business days of receipt of notification from the Rent Board or Rent Program staff
that a Landlord has charged and collected Rent in excess of the Maximum Allowable Rent,
the Landlord shall issue a refund of excess Rent that a Tenant has paid after December 30,
2016, to the Tenant in the form of a cashier’s check. Proof of Excess Rent Refund must be
The 2017 Annual General Adjustment is not to exceed 3.4%.

[Formerly Regulation 17-05; adopted June 21, 2017]

606.

Annual General Adjustment Order for 2018

The percentage increase in the CPI from 2017-2018, is 3.6% and thus the following Annual
General Adjustment shall apply:

A

B.

The 2018 Annual General Adjustment is not to exceed 3.6%.

The Annual General Adjustment granted by this Regulation shall become effective on
September 1, 2018, provided that the landlord is otherwise entitled to the adjustment
pursuant to the provisions of the Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause For Eviction and
Homeowner Protection Ordinance, and any other applicable Regulation.

Where the landlord is entitled to the adjustment pursuant to the provisions of the Richmond Fair
Rent, Just Cause For Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance, and any other applicable
Regulation, the Annual General Adjustment granted by this Regulation does not automatically
provide for a rent increase. A Landlord may increase Rent by the 2018 Annual General Adjustment
for tenancies in effect prior to September 1, 2017, only if the Landlord is in compliance with
Regulation 601.

[Formerly Regulation 17-11; adopted June 20, 2018]

Page 30 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Chapter 7:  VACANCY RENT INCREASES

700. New Maximum Allowable Rent

Pursuant to Section 1954.50, et seq. of the Civil Code, the Landlord may establish the lawful
Maximum Allowable Rent for any Controlled Rental Unit consistent with this regulation. The
new rent level shall thereafter the new Maximum Allowable Rent for the unit for all purposes
including, but not limited to, the computation of all future rent adjustments. The unit shall
otherwise remain controlled by the Ordinance and all other regulations of the Rent Board.

A. In these Regulations the terms "new Maximum Allowable Rent" and “initial rental rate” refer
to the rent established by the Landlord for a Tenant whose tenancy becomes effective after
July 21, 2015. For tenancies commencing on or after July 21, 2015, the "initial rent" for a
Rental Unit shall be the monthly rent established by the parties at the commencement of the
most recent tenancy. Where the rental agreement includes periods for which the Tenant pays
reduced, discounted or "free" rent, the Maximum Allowable Rent is calculated as the average
of the monthly payments made during the initial term of the agreement or, in the case of a
month-to-month tenancy, during the first twelve months of the tenancy.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
701. Vacancy Rent Levels

A. Commencing July 21, 2015, a Landlord may establish the initial rent rate for all new
tenancies consistent with Civil Code Section 1954.50, et seq., and any Board regulations
enacted consistent therewith, except where any of the following applies:

(1)
a. The previous tenancy has been lawfully terminated by the Landlord pursuant to
Civil Code Section 1946, or;

b. The previous tenancy has been lawfully terminated upon a change in terms of
tenancy noticed pursuant to Civil Code Section 827, except a change permitted by
law in the amount of rent or fees or resulting from the owner's termination of or
failure to renew a contract or recorded agreement with a Housing Authority or
any other governmental agency that provided for a rent limitation to a qualified
Tenant of the unit. A tenancy shall be presumed to have terminated upon a change
in terms of tenancy if the Tenant(s) vacate(s) the Rental Unit within twelve
months of the Landlord's unilateral change in the terms of the rental agreement.
Absent a showing by the Landlord that the Tenant(s) vacated for reasons other
than the change in the terms of the rental agreement, the initial rental rate for the
new tenancy shall be no greater than the most recent Maximum Allowable Rent
(prior to the new tenancy).

(2) A new tenancy begun within three years of the date that the owner terminated or failed to
renew a contract or recorded agreement with a Housing Authority or any other

Page 31 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

governmental agency that provided for a rent limitation to a qualified Tenant of the unit
unless the new tenancy is exempted from this limitation pursuant to- Civil Code Section
1954.53(a)(1)(B). During the three year period, the rental rate for any new tenancy
established in that vacated unit shall be at the same rate as under the terminated or non-
renewed contract or recorded agreement, increased by any subsequently authorized
Annual General Adjustments.

(3) The Landlord has otherwise agreed by contract with a public entity to limit or otherwise
restrict rent levels in consideration for a direct financial contribution or any other forms
of assistance specified in Chapter 4.3 (commencing with Section 65915) of Division 1 of
title 7 of the Government Code.

(4) The dwelling or unit has been cited in an inspection report by the appropriate government
agency as containing serious health, safety, fire or building code violations as defined by
Health and Safety Code Section 17920.3 excluding those caused by disasters or damages
incurred by the Tenant or associated occupants, guests, or pets, the citation was issued at
least sixty (60) calendar days prior to the date of the vacancy, and the cited violation had
not been abated when the prior Tenant vacated and has remained unabated for at least
sixty (60) calendar days, unless the time for correction was extended by the agency that
issued the citation.

(5) The prior Tenant was the spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent or
grandparent of a Landlord who recovered possession of the unit pursuant to RMC
11.100.050(a)(6).

(6) The prior Tenant vacated the property as a proximate result of the conduct by the
Landlord such that the vacancy is non-voluntary, except for evictions for just cause as
provided under RMC 11.100.050.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
702. Voluntary and Non-Voluntary Vacancies

A. For the purposes of this Chapter, a "voluntary™ vacancy shall mean a vacancy that results
from the independent choice of the Tenant, without intimidation, pressure, or harassment. For
purposes of this section “abandonment” is defined as the Tenant's independent choice,
without intimidation, pressure, or harassment to relinquish all right and possession of the
premises, with the intention of not reclaiming or resuming its possession or enjoyment, and
the Landlord terminates the tenancy pursuant to Civil Code Section 1951.3. Abandonment is
considered voluntary.

B. Non-Voluntary Vacancy means a vacancy resulting from conduct by the Landlord which
constitutes:

(1) Acts prohibited by law;

(2) Constructive eviction;

Page 32 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

(3) A breach of the covenant of quiet enjoyment of the property;
(4) Harassment;

(5) Threats to withdraw the property from the rental market pursuant to the Government
Code Section 7060-7060.7 (Ellis Act) and Rent Board Regulation 17-07; and,

(6) Notices of any kind that negligently or intentionally misrepresent to a Tenant that the
Tenant is required to vacate the Rental Unit.

C. "Harassment" shall be defined as a knowing and willful act or course of conduct directed at a
specific Tenant or Tenants which:

(1) Would cause a reasonable person to fear the loss of use or occupancy of a Rental Unit or
part thereof, or of any service, privilege or facility connected with such use or occupancy,
without legitimate reason or legal justification; or

(2) Materially interferes with a Tenant's peaceful enjoyment of the use and/or occupancy of a
Rental Unit; or

(3) A single act may constitute harassment for purposes of determining whether a vacancy
was voluntary. A course of conduct is a pattern of conduct composed of a series of acts
over a period of time, however short, evidencing a continuity of purpose.

(4) Acts constituting harassment include, but are not limited to the following:

a. Eviction on the grounds of an Owner Move-In pursuant to Ordinance section
11.100.050(a)(6) which was not in good faith.

b. The threat or repeated threat to evict a Tenant in bad faith, under circumstances
evidencing the Landlord's purpose to cause the Tenant to vacate a Rental Unit.

c. Reduction in housing services under circumstances evidencing the Landlord's purpose
to cause the Tenant to vacate a Rental Unit;

d. Reduction in maintenance or failure to perform necessary repairs or maintenance
under circumstances evidencing the Landlord's purpose to cause the Tenant to vacate
a controlled Rental Unit;

e. Abuse of the Landlord's right of access into a residential unit within the meaning of
California Civil Code §1954; or

f. Verbal or physical abuse or intimidation.

(5) A vacancy occurring as result of the filing of a Notice of Intent to Withdraw under
Government Code Section 7060-7060.7 (the Ellis Act and Rent Board Regulation 17-07)
shall not be considered voluntary.

(6) A tenancy and subsequent vacancy created as a sham shall not be considered voluntary.
A sham tenancy may be presumed where the occupant did not have a bona fide Landlord-

Page 33 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Tenant relationship with the Landlord, or occupied the property for less than four (4)
months and principally for the purpose of vacating the property to establish eligibility for
vacancy-related increase.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
703. No Vacancy Rent Increase for Original Occupants

A. The Maximum Allowable Rent for a Controlled Rental Unit occupied by an Original
Occupant shall not be increased under the provisions of this Regulation while the existing
Tenant occupies the unit as their principal residence. For purposes of this Regulation, the
term “original occupant” as used herein includes any Tenant in the Rental Unit, with the
Landlord's knowledge, was residing in the unit on or before July 21, 2015, or when the
Landlord last established an initial rent for the unit.

B. No existing Tenant shall be required to vacate a Rental Unit as a result of a covenant or
condition in a rental agreement requiring the Tenant to surrender possession except as
permitted under Section 11.100.040(a)(1) of the Ordinance.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]

704. Increase and Decrease Petitions

Nothing in this Chapter prohibits Tenants or Landlords from filing rent adjustment petitions
pursuant the Board's regulations.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
705. Fraud or Intentional Misrepresentation

Any increase in the Maximum Allowable Rent authorized pursuant to this regulation that is
obtained by fraud or misrepresentation by the Landlord or the Landlord’s agent or employee
shall be void.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
706. Subletting

A. An owner may increase the rent by any amount allowed by Civil Code section 1954.50 et
sed., and Section 706(B) of this Chapter, to a sub-lessee or assignee when the original
occupant or occupants who took possession of the Rental Unit pursuant to a rental agreement
with the owner no longer permanently resides in the Rental Unit. The term “original
occupant™ as used herein includes any Tenant in the Rental Unit, with the Landlord's
knowledge, was residing in the unit on or before July 21, 2015, or when the Landlord last
established an initial rent for the unit.

Within fifteen (15) calendar days of any rent increase pursuant to this subsection, a Tenancy
Registration form(s) described in Section 402(A)(1) shall be filed with the Board.

Page 34 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

B.

[Ad

707.

Where one or more of the occupants of the Rental Unit pursuant to the agreement with the
owner, remain an occupant in lawful possession of the Rental Unit, this Chapter shall not
apply to partial changes in occupancy of the Rental Unit made with the consent of the owner.
Nothing contained in this Chapter shall establish or create any obligation of an owner to
permit or consent to a sublease or assignment.

New roommates are considered subtenants of the original occupants as long as they do not
sign a lease or rental agreement with the Landlord, and the Landlord may increase the rent
when the unit is occupied only by subtenants who are not Original Occupants. Thus, a
Landlord may set a new initial rent by giving proper written notice if: (1) there has been a
complete turnover of original occupants; (2) none of the remaining occupants has signed a
lease or rental agreement with the landlord; and (3) the Landlord has not accepted rent after
receiving written notice from the last original occupant that they have moved out or will be
moving out permanently. If the subtenants hide the fact that the last original occupant has
moved out permanently, the Landlord’s acceptance of rent does not preclude the Landlord
from implementing a vacancy increase. The Landlord can defer a vacancy rent increase for
up to six months after receiving written notice of the last original occupant’s departure, by
agreeing in writing with the remaining tenants to do so.

Where the Landlord initially rents a Rental Unit to a Tenant and authorizes more than one
Tenant to occupy the unit, but fails to place the name of more than one Tenant on the Rental
Housing Agreement, all Tenants who occupy the unit within one month, with permission of
the Landlord, express or implied, shall be considered original occupants.

opted February 21, 2018]
Rent Level following an Owner Move-In Notice or Eviction

A. A written request from a Landlord for a Tenant to vacate a unit so the Landlord or a
qualifying relative of the Landlord may occupy the unit as a principle residence shall be
treated as a Notice to Terminate Tenancy pursuant to Civil Code Section 1946 for the
purpose of determining the rent level when the unit is subsequently rented.

B. A Landlord who serves a 30 or 60-Day Notice of Termination of Tenancy pursuant to
Richmond Municipal Code section 11.100.050(A)(6) for the purpose of recovering
possession of the unit for their own use or occupancy as a principle residence or the
principle residence of a qualifying relative may rescind the notice or stop eviction
proceedings but, if the Tenant vacates within one year of the date of service of the notice,
the tenancy is presumed to have been terminated by the Landlord as a result of the notice.
The rental rate for the next tenancy established in the vacated unit shall be no more than
the Maximum Allowable Rent under the Ordinance for the Tenant who vacated, plus any
subsequent increases authorized by the Rent Board.

C. This presumption applies even though the Tenant vacates the unit after the notice has
been rescinded. A written statement from the Tenant that the Tenant is leaving of their

Page 35 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

own volition signed as part of a settlement whereby the Tenant is required to vacate the
unit is insufficient to rebut this presumption.

D. A Landlord may rebut the presumption at a hearing based on a preponderance of the
evidence. Such a hearing shall follow the process established for an Individual Rent

Adjustment.
[Adopted February 21, 2018]

Page 36 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

CHAPTER 8: PETITION PROCESS & HEARING PROCEDURES

800. (RESERVED)
801. Petitions

A. Any Landlord or Tenant seeking an individual adjustment of the maximum allowable rent
under Section 11.100.070 of the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner
Protection Ordinance must file a petition in accordance with the procedures set forth in this
Chapter.

B. The petitioner must attach to the petition documentation that is adequate to establish
eligibility for the rent adjustment that is requested. The necessary documentation will vary
according to the petition and is specified in the appropriate regulation and in the petition
form. If the necessary documentation is unavailable, the petitioner’s verification of the
petition or declaration under penalty of perjury may substitute for the unavailable
documentation. It is the policy of the Rent Board that each party submits all supporting
evidence as early as possible prior to the hearing. The hearing examiner may refuse to accept
documentary evidence at the hearing unless there is good cause for petitioner’s failure to
submit it prior to the hearing.

C. The petitioner, whether a Landlord or Tenant, has the burden of proof concerning an
individual adjustment of the maximum allowable rent; provided, however, the hearing
examiner or Board, in making a decision under this Chapter, retains the discretion to review
records, files and order inspections.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
802. Previous Recent Hearing

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Chapter, the Board or the Executive Director (or
designee) may refuse to hold a hearing and/or grant an individual Maximum Allowable Rent
adjustment for a rental unit if an individual hearing has been held and decision made with regard
to the recent ceiling for such unit within the previous twelve months.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
803. No Petition Filing Fee

There shall be no fee for filing a petition for individual adjustment of the maximum allowable
rent. The Board may institute such a fee at a future date, with any waivers and reductions that it
deems appropriate.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
804. Proper Filing of the Petition

A. Proper filing of the petition is the responsibility of the petitioner. Provided that the
requirements of Regulations 804 (Proper Filing of the Petition) and 805 (Acceptance of

Page 37 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Petitions) are satisfied, a petition is deemed properly filed on the date it is received by the
Board if it is acceptable.

Board staff will make a preliminary review of each petition after it has been submitted.
Petitions that are not signed by the petitioner, illegible, incomprehensible, erroneously
completed, incomplete, lack a proof of service on the opposing party or for which the
required fees have not been paid will not be considered acceptable.

B. No Landlord petition for an individual rent adjustment will be accepted for filing unless the
unit for which the adjustment is requested has been properly registered and all notices of rent
increases, termination of tenancy, or changes in terms of tenancy filed with the Rent Board
for at least 30 days. A unit is considered properly registered only if the completed registration
statement has been filed with the Board, and the Rental Housing fee, Business License Tax,
(plus any late fees) has been paid in full.

C. A petition by a former Tenant pursuant to these Regulations shall be commenced within three
years from the date the Tenant vacated the unit in question.

D. No individual rent adjustment proceedings will take place for petitions that are not properly
filed. The procedures for determining proper filing and allowing an unacceptable petition to
be corrected are set out in Regulation 805(A)(4) and 805(B)(4).

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
805. Petition and Noticing Procedures
A. For rent increase petitions, the following procedure applies:

(1) Rent increase petitions may be filed under the following regulations: Chapter 9, Sections
903 (Changes in Number of Tenants), 904 (Change in Space or Services/Code
Violations), 905 (Maintenance of Net Operating Income), 9XX (Capital Improvements),
912 (Restoration of Annual General Adjustment), and 9XX (Historically Low Rent).

(2) A copy of the rent increase petition and, except as provided in Regulation 9XX (Capital
Improvements), supporting documentation must be served on the Tenants of all units
affected by the petition.

(3) The Landlord shall file with the Board the original petition, two copies of the
documentation required by Regulation 801 and by the Regulation pursuant to which the
Petition is filed, and a proof of service by first-class mail or in person of the petition and
documentation on each affected Tenant. The Landlord may also file an Agreement of
Parties and/or Waiver of Right to Hearing.

(4) Board staff shall review the petition and supporting documentation to determine whether
they conform with Board regulations and within five (5) business days shall either mail
notice to the Landlord that the petition is not acceptable in its current form, with an
explanation of its defects (pursuant to Regulation 806 Acceptance of Petitions) or mail a

Page 38 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Notice to Opposing Parties to the Tenants and Landlord, as provided in Regulation 809
(Notice to Opposing Parties and Board). For petitions filed pursuant to Regulations 9XX
(Maintenance of Net Operating Income), the review period shall be fifteen (15) business
days. If a petition is found unacceptable, the Landlord may refile at any time. Acceptance
of a petition by Board staff does not mean that the petitioner has submitted adequate
documentation to support a decision in petitioner's favor. A Landlord may, at any time
prior to submission of the matter for an administrative decision, request that a hearing be
held.

(5) The notice to the Tenant shall include a notice that the Tenant has a right to object to the
petition, and that if the Tenant does not object within twenty-one (21) calendar days of
the mailing of the notice, or if the Tenant's objection does not specify one or more
grounds listed in the notice, the rent for the Tenant's unit may be increased by the
applicable amount, based on the information in the Landlord's petition and the Board's
files. Failure to file an objection may constitute a waiver of the right to a hearing on
objections to the petition.

(6) A hearing shall be held on the petition and objections thereto, in accordance with
Regulation 821 (Hearing), unless no Tenant files an objection within the time allowed,
the Landlord has not requested a hearing and the hearing examiner determines that a
decision may be rendered on the petition without hearing live testimony. Notwithstanding
any other provision of these regulations, Board staff may, upon notice to all parties,
request further documentation and/or schedule a hearing on the petition.

B. For Tenant petitions, the following procedure applies:

(1) Tenant petitions may be filed pursuant to Chapter 9 (Individual Rent Adjustments),
Sections 903 (Changes in Number of Tenants), 904 (Change in Space or Services/Code
Violations), 911 (Overcharges) and Rent Withholding Petitions pursuant to Chapter 4.

(2) A copy of the Tenant petition and supporting documentation must be served on the
petitioner's Landlord.

(3) The Tenant shall file with the Board the original petition, two copies of the
documentation required by Regulation 801 and by the Regulation pursuant to which the
petition is filed, and proof of service by first-class mail or in person of the petition and
documentation.

(4) Board staff shall review the petition and supporting documentation to determine whether
they conform to Board Regulations and within five (5) business days shall either mail
notice that the petition is not acceptable in its current form, with an explanation of its
defects (pursuant to Regulation 805 Petition and Noticing Procedure) or mail a Notice to
Opposing Parties to the Landlord and Tenants, as provided in Regulation 808 (Notice to
Opposing Parties and Board). If a petition is unacceptable, the Tenant may refile at any
time. Acceptance of a petition by Board staff does not mean that the petitioner has
submitted adequate documentation to support a decision in petitioner's favor.

Page 39 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

(5) The notice to the Landlord shall include a notice that the Landlord has a right to object to
the petition, and that if the Landlord does not object within twenty-one (21) calendar days
of the mailing of the notice, or the Landlord's objection does not specify one or more
grounds listed in the notice, the rent for the Tenant's unit may be decreased by the
applicable amount, based on the information in the Tenant's petition and the Board's files.
Failure to file an objection may constitute a waiver of the right to a hearing on objections
to the petition.

(6) A hearing shall be held on the petition and objections thereto, in accordance with
Regulation 821 (Hearing), unless neither the Landlord nor the Tenant requests a hearing
within the time allowed and the hearing examiner determines that a decision may be
rendered on the petition without hearing live testimony. Notwithstanding any other
provision of these regulations, Board staff may, upon notice to all parties, request further
documentation and/or schedule a hearing on the petition.

C. The time limits set forth in this section will prevail over any other time limits set out
elsewhere in these regulations.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
806. Supplemental Information

A. The petitioner shall notify the Board and each opposing party of any material change in the
information set forth in the petition, especially a change in the identity of any opposing party,
as soon as possible prior to the hearing. When there is a change in the opposing party, the
petitioner shall serve the new party in accordance with Sections 805 (Petition and Noticing
Procedures). Notice and proof of service shall be in accordance with Section 809 (Notices to
Opposing Parties and Board). The new party shall thereafter be provided by the Rent Board
with notice of the right to object to the petition.

B. Changes in or additions to the information set forth on the petition may be grounds for a
continuance, and may constitute good cause for delaying final Board action under Section
844 (Time for Decision) of these regulations.

C. The party responding to the petition shall notify the Board and each opposing party of any
material change in the information set forth in the response to the petition, including any
additional objections, as soon as possible prior to the hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
807. Parties

Parties are the Landlord of the affected property, the Tenants in each affected rental unit (with all
the Tenants in one unit constituting one party), and any representatives designated pursuant to
Section 834 (Rights of Parties). The person listed as the Landlord in a Tenant petition for rent
adjustment shall be the Landlord party, unless the Board is notified to the contrary.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

Page 40 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

808. Notices to Opposing Parties and Board

A. Manner of Notice: Notice(s) to opposing parties shall be served by first-class or certified
mail, or by personal service on the party or the party's representative of record. Personal
service shall be performed according to state law. Notices to the Board shall include a proof
of service that proper notice was given to the opposing parties, by means of a written
declaration by the server under penalty of perjury, stating the names and addresses of parties
served and the date and manner of such service.

B. Notice after Petition Filed: The Board shall notify the opposing parties of the filing of a
petition and send each opposing party a response form that includes notice that the party has
a right to object to the petition, a statement of possible objections, notice that the party's
failure to object within the time specified may constitute a waiver of the right to have a
hearing on objections to the petition, and a brief description of the hearing process.

C. Other Notices: The Board shall send a copy of all notices, to each party, and parties shall
send to other parties, a copy of all documents or communications filed with the Board after
the filing of the initial petition, except for documents or communications which are filed
during the hearing or are confidential.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
809. Response to Petition

A. A party wishing to object to the petition may do so on the form provided within twenty-one
(21) calendar days of the mailing of the notice required under Section 808(B). Failure to
respond may constitute a waiver of the respondent’s right to object to the petition.
Notwithstanding a party's failure to respond, no petition for an individual rent adjustment
shall be granted unless the adjustment is authorized by these regulations and supported by a
preponderance of the evidence.

B. Response to Petitions Filed for Violations of Maximum Allowable Rent. In response to a
petition filed solely on the basis of violations of the Maximum Allowable Rent, the Landlord
may defend as to the issue of such violations of the Maximum Allowable Rent, but may not
counterclaim for an increase of the lawful Maximum Allowable Rent. To make such counter-
claims, the Landlord must file a separate petition in accordance with Chapter 8, and Section
802 shall not prevent such a petition from being accepted.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
810. (RESERVED)

811. Consolidation

A. All Landlord petitions pertaining to Tenants in the same building and all petitions filed by
Tenants occupying the same building shall be consolidated for hearing unless there is a
showing of good cause not to consolidate such petitions.

Page 41 of 84



Cit

ITEM G-4

y of Richmond Rent Program

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

B.

[Ad

812.

813.

[Ad

In its discretion, the Board or the hearing examiner may consolidate petitions pertaining to
different buildings on the same property or different properties of the same Landlord.

opted January 24, 2018]
Confidentiality

A. Documents filed in connection with an individual rent adjustment proceeding shall be
public records unless a party receives a determination by the hearing examiner that a
particular document shall be confidential. For any such determination of confidentiality
to be made it must be demonstrated that the document in question is exempt under the
California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq) or that the public
interest served by not making the document public clearly outweighs the public interest
served by disclosure of the document. Unless otherwise specified by the hearing
examiner, documents determined to be confidential will be available for inspection by the
opposing party but not by the general public.

B. A party seeking a determination that a particular document shall be treated as confidential
shall make such a request in writing. The request shall be made at the time that the
document in question is offered as evidence or is otherwise required to be produced. The
hearing examiner may determine that only a portion of the document is to be treated as
confidential, and may make such rulings regarding disclosure to both the opposing party
and the general public as are consistent with this Section. The request and the ruling
thereon shall be included in the record.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
Expedited Hearings

The Rent Board recognizes that consistency in rulings by the Rent Board and the courts is
desirable. Therefore, in order to provide consistency of decisions in cases where both a Rent
Board petition and an unlawful detainer action have been filed, the purpose of this
Regulation is to ensure that the Rent Board rules on issues which are involved in petitions
before it and in unlawful detainer cases prior to the Court ruling on the same issue.

Priority in the scheduling of hearings and in the issuance of decisions shall be given to
pending petitions and appeals involving rental units on which eviction proceedings have
commenced. An eviction is deemed to commence when either a three (3) or thirty (30) day or
less notice to quit has been served. A party may request that a petition or an appeal be given
priority by filing a request to expedite, accompanied by a copy of either the notice to quit or
the unlawful detainer complaint with the Rent Board and serving a copy of the same on the

opposing party.
opted January 24, 2018]

814 - 820. (RESERVED)
821. Hearing

Page 42 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

It is the policy of the Rent Board that all petitions and objections be decided on their merits,
consistent with due process of law and orderly administrative procedures. The regulations of this
Chapter are intended to ensure that each party is given notice of the grounds for a petition and all
objections thereto in advance of the hearing so that all parties will be prepared to present their
case at the hearing. Accordingly, the hearing shall be limited to the issues raised by the petition
and the objections filed thereto, unless the hearing examiner determines that, in the interest of
fairness, additional issues or objections should be considered and thereafter takes all necessary
steps to ensure that all parties have a full and fair opportunity to respond to new issues,
objections or evidence.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
822. Hearing Examiner

A. A hearing examiner shall conduct a hearing to determine whether the individual adjustment
petition should be granted. The hearing examiners shall have the following powers with
respect to cases assigned to them:

(1) To administer oaths and affirmations;
(2) To grant requests for subpoenas and to order the production of evidence;

(3) To rule upon offers of proof and receive evidence;
(4) To regulate the course of the hearing and rule upon requests for continuances;
(5) To call, examine, and cross-examine witnesses, and to introduce evidence into the record,;

(6) To decide the petition administratively without a hearing if no hearing is requested by the
petitioner, the responding party fails to timely file objections, and the record is sufficient
to render a decision on the petition without hearing live testimony;

(7) To make and file decisions on petitions in accordance with this Chapter;

(8) To take any other action that is authorized by this Chapter or other Board Regulation.
[Adopted January 24, 2018]
823. Evidence and Standard of Proof

A. The hearing examiner may require either party to a rent adjustment hearing to provide any
books, records and papers deemed pertinent. All required documents shall be made available
to the parties involved, at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing or its continuation, at the
offices of the Board.

B. If the hearing examiner finds good cause to believe that the Board's current information does
not reflect the current condition of the rental unit, the hearing examiner shall conduct or
request the City to conduct an appropriate building inspection. Any party may also request
the hearing examiner to order such an inspection prior to the hearing.

Page 43 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

C. The hearing examiner need not conduct the hearing according to technical courtroom rules of
evidence. Any relevant evidence may be considered if it is the sort of evidence on which
responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of business regardless of any
common law or statutory rule which might exclude such evidence in court proceedings. The
hearing examiner may exclude unduly repetitious or irrelevant evidence.

D. No adjustment in Maximum Allowable Rent shall be granted unless supported by the
preponderance of the evidence submitted at the hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
824. Board Action

The Board, on its own motion or on the request of any party, may hold a hearing on any
individual adjustment petition without the petition first being heard by a hearing examiner. For
purposes of these regulations, the Board shall be considered a hearing examiner when holding a
hearing under this Section. In the event that the Board elects to hold a hearing, the decision of the
Board shall be the final decision of the Board, except in cases where the Board decision is to
send the issue to a hearing examiner for further review.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
825. Notice of Hearing

Notice of the time, date and place of hearing shall be mailed to all parties no later than ten (10)
days before the scheduled date of the hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
826. Continuances

A. The date and time of the hearing may be continued, either before the hearing or at the
hearing, if the hearing examiner finds good cause to do so. Such good cause shall be stated in
the record and may include, but is not limited to, the failure of a party to receive notice, the
illness of a party or witness or other emergency which makes it impossible for a party or
witness to appear on the scheduled date, or the failure of a party to provide the hearing
examiner with required pertinent information in a timely manner. Mere inconvenience or
difficulty in appearing shall not constitute good cause. Continuances may also be granted
upon consent of all parties.

B. Requests for continuances shall be made as soon as possible. A written request for a
continuance and the reasons for it must be received by the Board and all other parties at least
48 hours prior to the scheduled hearing, unless good cause is shown for a later request. The
written request shall contain acceptable alternative dates and an explanation of what efforts
were made to ascertain the position of the other parties regarding the request for a
continuance. The request shall be served on both the Board and all opposing parties in
accordance with the requirements of Section 808.

Page 44 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

C. The hearing examiner may deny a request for a continuance if it has not been made in
compliance with Section 826(B) or where a continuance has previously been granted to the
requesting party in the same case.

D. The Board shall notify the parties if a continuance is granted, and the date and place of the
rescheduled hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
827. Disqualification of Hearing Examiner or Board Member

A. No hearing examiners or Board members shall take part in any hearing or appeal on a
petition for an individual rent adjustment in which the hearing examiner or Board member
has a personal financial interest in the outcome (such as being the Landlord of, or a Tenant
residing in, the property that is involved in the petition), or a personal bias for or against any
party. The hearing examiner’s or Board member’s general status as a Landlord or Tenant, or
political or philosophical beliefs, shall not constitute personal bias.

B. Hearing examiners or Board members shall disclose to all parties any prior communication
with a party concerning the subject of the petition, as well as any possible or apparent
personal financial interest or personal bias.

C. Hearing examiners or Board members may disqualify themselves at any time. In addition,
any party may file a written request for disqualification, stating the grounds, with the
Executive Director (for hearing examiners) or the Board Chairperson (for Board members) at
least 72 hours prior to the hearing. However, if the identity of the hearing examiner or Board
member was not known soon enough to allow this, the written request shall be filed as soon
as possible but in no event later than the taking of any evidence at the hearing. Any such
request shall be ruled upon prior to the taking of any evidence at the hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
828. Subpoenas

The hearing examiner may by order or subpoena require that either party or any other person
provide her/him with any books, records, papers, or other evidence deemed pertinent to the
petition or that any witness appear and testify. All documents required under this provision shall
be made available to the parties at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing, at the office of the
Board. Parties to the hearing shall have the right to request the hearing examiner to issue
subpoenas on their behalf, but the responsibility for service of such subpoenas remains with the
requesting party. The subpoena shall disclose on its face at whose request it has been issued and
that it is issued in the name of the Board.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
829. Stipulations

Page 45 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

The parties, by written stipulation filed with the hearing examiner, may agree upon some or all of
the facts or evidence involved in the hearing. Stipulations may also be made orally at the hearing.
Any fact or evidence which is the subject of a stipulation shall be treated as having been
established by a preponderance of the evidence.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
830. (RESERVED)
831. Ex-Parte Communications

There shall be no communications regarding any pending case outside of the hearing between the
hearing examiner assigned to the case and any party, representative or witness in any case
pending before the hearing examiner until the hearing examiner has completed the written
decision in that case, except for discussions about requests for continuances, building inspections
or determinations of confidentiality, prehearing discussions pursuant to Regulation 832, where
both parties or their representatives have an opportunity to be present, or orders by the hearing
examiner to produce evidence pursuant to Regulation 826. There may be communications on any
matters with other Board staff.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
832. Agreement Prior to Hearing

A. The parties may make a prehearing agreement. The Board staff may contact the parties in an
effort to clarify the issues and/or to reach agreement on the individual adjustment prior to the
hearing. Any agreement between the parties prior to a hearing must be approved by the
Hearing Examiner in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

B. Any agreement made by the parties at the prehearing or hearing shall be made on the record
and recorded. The terms of the agreement shall be read to the parties, and the parties shall
state that they understand the terms of the agreement, that they do not want a hearing on the
petition, and that they voluntarily agree to the terms of the agreement.

C. Parties shall submit any proposed joint agreement in writing to the Board staff. The hearing
examiner shall approve or reject the agreement as soon as possible. Written notice of the
determination shall be mailed to the parties. The notice shall contain the reasons for any
rejection. The agreement and its approval or rejection shall be entered into the record.

Page 46 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

D. Parties who prior to a hearing reach an agreement on an individual adjustment which is
approved by the Hearing Examiner shall be deemed to have waived their rights to a hearing
or appeal on the petition. Such an approved agreement shall also be deemed a hearing for the
purposes of Section 802 of this Chapter.

However, upon demonstration of fraud, misrepresentation, or similarly compelling reasons,
either party may request that the hearing examiner withdraw the settlement and set the matter
for hearing. If such a request is denied, the party may appeal such denial to the Board.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

833. Open Hearings

All individual Maximum Allowable Rent adjustment hearings shall be open to the public.
[Adopted January 24, 2018]

834. Rights of Parties

A. All parties to a hearing shall have the right to appear at the hearing and present evidence and
argument in person, and/or have assistance from attorneys, legal workers, recognized Tenant
organization representatives or any other designated persons. Before a representative is
allowed to advocate for, or in any way represent, a party, the party must present to the Board
a signed, written statement designating the representative. Representatives shall file written
statements with the Board that they are assisting the named party, with the name, address and
phone number of the representative. All parties shall also have the right to call, examine, and
cross-examine witnesses to request the hearing examiner to issue orders or subpoenas for
witnesses or evidence and to exercise any other rights conferred by the Fair Rent, Just Cause
for Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance, this Chapter or other Board Regulations.

B. Unless otherwise specified by regulation or by order of the Rent Board or hearing examiner,
any period of notice and any right or duty to do any act or make any response within any
period or on a date certain after service of a document shall be extended by five days if the
document was served by mail.

C. Except for the failure to timely file an appeal in accordance with Regulation 842, the Rent
Board or hearing examiner may relieve a party of the consequences of a failure to perform an
act on or before a date certain and allow additional time to perform the act where the party
demonstrates that there was a good cause for the failure. Application for this relief shall be
made within a reasonable time, in no case exceeding thirty days, after the date certain and
shall be accompanied by a sworn declaration attesting to the facts alleged to constitute the
good cause.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

Page 47 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

835. Hearing Record

The official record of the hearing shall include the following: an audio recording of the hearing;
all exhibits, papers, and documents required to be filed or accepted into evidence during the
proceedings; a list of participants present; a summary of all testimony accepted; a statement of
all material officially noticed; all recommended and final decisions, orders, and/or rulings; and
the reasons for each final decision, order and/or ruling. This official record shall constitute the
exclusive record for the decision on the issues raised at the hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
836. Availability of Record

The Board shall make the official record available for inspection and copying by any person and
provide a copy of all or part of the official record at a reasonable copying cost.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
837. Notice of Decision

The Board shall send a notice of the hearing examiner's decision to all parties to the hearing.
Such notice shall include a copy of the findings of fact and law supporting the decision, as well
as a statement of their right to and the time limit for any appeal to the Board and/or judicial
review of the decision.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
838. Finality of Decision

The hearing examiner's decision shall be the final decision of the Board in the event no appeal is
made to the Board.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
839 — 840 (RESERVED)
841. Right of Appeal

Any party may appeal a hearing examiner’s decision to the Board. On appeal, the Board may
affirm, reverse, remand or modify the decision of the hearing examiner. The Board may conduct
a new hearing or may act solely on the basis of the official record before the hearing examiner.
The decision on appeal shall be the final decision of the Board, and the Board shall send a notice
of the decision to all parties to the appeal, which shall include a statement of their right to
judicial review. Decisions remanded to the hearing examiner shall be limited to instances where
additional findings of fact are required.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

Page 48 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

842.
A

Appeal Process

Any appeal shall be filed on a form provided by the Board no later than thirty (30) calendar
days after receipt of the notice of the hearing examiner's decision. A party is presumed to
receive the decision five (5) business days after it is mailed. The appeal must contain a
statement of the specific grounds on which the appeal is based. The Board will not consider
an appeal that fails to state any facts or arguments in support of the grounds alleged in the
appeal. Except as provided in Section 842(E), no other documents in support of the appeal
will be accepted after the appeal deadline unless specifically requested by the Board. The
appeal shall be sent to the Board and opposing parties and their representative. Additionally,
appellants shall send a copy of the appeal to the hearing examiner whose decision is being
appealed. The Board or staff may order that appeals relating to the same building or property,
or different properties of the same Landlord, be consolidated. The opposing party shall file
any response to the appeal within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the appeal is filed.

The hearing examiner's decision shall be stayed pending appeal. In its decision, the Board
shall order the appropriate party to make retroactive payments over a reasonably appropriate
period to restore the parties to the positions they would have occupied had the hearing
examiner's decision been the same as that of the Board or had not been stayed.

At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action on the appeal, a
Board Staff report shall be prepared recommending that the decision of the hearing examiner
be affirmed, modified, reversed or remanded to the hearing examiner for further hearing.
Board Staff may supplement the record by including matters of which the Board may take
official notice, provided that the parties are notified of such matters at least fourteen (14)
days prior to the date set for Board action. Any objection to a staff request for official notice
of such matters shall be filed no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the date set for
Board action.

At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action, all parties shall be
notified by mail of the date, time and place set for Board action on the appeal. Copies of the
Board Staff recommendation shall be mailed to all parties and their representatives at least 14
days prior to the Board action. Copies of the official record and the staff recommendation
shall be available for public review at the Board office at least fourteen (14) days prior to the
date set for Board action. Parties may submit written comments to the Board up to seven (7)
days prior to the Board action.

At the Board meeting at which action on the appeal is scheduled, each party or the party’s
representative will be allowed seven (7) minutes to address the Board at the beginning of the
hearing in the following order: appellant for five (5) minutes, respondent for seven (7)
minutes, appellant for two (2) minutes. For any party addressing the Board who requires
translation the allowable times shall be doubled. The Board has the discretion to allow more
time.

Page 49 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

F. Unless the Board determines that a de novo hearing is required, the Board's decision will be
based exclusively on the record before the hearing examiner. Parties shall be instructed not to
discuss or comment upon factual matters or evidence that were not presented to the hearing
examiner or officially noticed. Parties may discuss or comment upon the legal matters in
question and any other pertinent issues raised by the appeal. The Board shall disregard any
discussion or comment regarding factual matters that were not in the record before the
hearing examiner or officially noticed. The vote of three (3) Board members is required to
affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the hearing examiner. If the Board has not
acted on the appeal at two consecutive Board meetings, the appeal is deemed denied.

G. The Board's decision to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the hearing
examiner shall be supported by written findings of fact and conclusions of law. When the
Board votes to adopt the staff recommendation unchanged, the parties to the appeal will be
notified only of the Board's decision. When the Board does not adopt the staff
recommendation as written, a written decision of the Board shall be mailed to the parties or
their representative of record.

H. Continuances of dates set for Board action on appeals shall be granted by a majority of the
Board or by the Executive Director only for good cause shown. A written request and the
reasons for it must be received by the Board at least two (2) business days prior to the
scheduled hearing, unless good cause is shown for later request. The written request must
contain the reasons for the continuance, an explanation of what efforts were made to
ascertain the position of the other parties regarding the request for a continuance, and
mutually acceptable alternative dates. Copies of this written request must be sent
immediately to all other parties and proof of service must accompany the written request
filed with the Board.

I. Reconsideration.

(1) At the discretion of the Executive Director or their designee, an appeal may be treated as
a request for reconsideration and referred back to the hearing examiner for such
reconsideration only if it is claimed by the appellant that:

a. There was good cause for a failure to respond to a petition; or

b. There was good cause for a failure to appear at a settlement conference or
hearing; or

c. The appellant wishes to present relevant evidence that could not, with reasonable
diligence, have been discovered and produced at the hearing.

(2) In the event that reconsideration under subsection (K) (l) is ordered, the parties will be so
notified within 15 days of the filing of the appeal and, thereafter, all correspondence shall
be directed to the hearing examiner. The threshold issue on reconsideration shall be
whether a preponderance of the evidence supports the assertion that good cause existed
for the failure to respond to a petition or to appear at a hearing or that the newly offered

Page 50 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

evidence could not, with reasonable diligence, have been discovered and produced at the
hearing. Only if good cause for the failure is found may the hearing examiner reconsider
the merits of the petition.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
843. Appeal Filing Fee

There shall be a fee of $75 for filing an appeal to the Board regarding a hearing examiner
decision on a petition for individual adjustment of the Maximum Allowable Rent. This fee shall
be waived for parties who are low-income as defined by the applicable income limits established
for Contra Costa County by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The
Board may make any additional waivers and reductions that it deems appropriate.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
844. Time for Decision

The Board shall take final action on any individual adjustment petition within 120 days
following the date of proper filing, unless good cause is responsible for the delay. Good cause
may include, but is not limited to, continuances granted, the submission of additional information
by the petitioner, the filing of a motion for reconsideration, or a request by a party to disqualify
the hearing examiner or Board member(s).

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
845. Conditions for Obtaining Individual Rent Adjustments

A. An individual upward adjustment of a Maximum Allowable Rent for a rental unit may be
awarded but shall not become effective so long as the Landlord:
(1) has failed to register any rental unit on the property with the Board;

(2) has demanded, accepted, received or retained rent in excess of the lawful Maximum
Allowable Rent for the affected unit;

(3) has failed to comply with any order of the Board concerning the affected unit or a former
Tenant of the affected unit; or

(4) has failed to bring the affected rental unit into compliance with the implied warranty of
habitability.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
846. Notice for Rent Increases

Allowable rent increases pursuant to an individual upward adjustment of the Maximum
Allowable Rent shall become effective only after the Landlord, following the decision of the
hearing examiner or Board, gives the Tenant at least a thirty (30) day written notice of such rent
increase and the notice period expires.

Page 51 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

847.
A.

Effective Date for Rent Decrease

If the hearing examiner or Board makes a downward individual adjustment of the Maximum

Allowable Rent, the rent decrease pursuant to such adjustment shall take effect on the date of
the next regularly scheduled rent payment, but no later than thirty (30) days after the date of

the decision by the hearing examiner or Board.

. Where a rent decrease is reversible after correction of a defect in the unit or violation of the

provisions of the Fair Rent, Just Cause For Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance or
its implementing Board Regulations, the Landlord shall be entitled to reinstatement of the
prior rent level, retroactive to the date that the Landlord corrected the situation that warranted
the decrease. The Landlord shall notify the Tenant and the hearing examiner of the correction
and provide evidence of compliance.

The compliance notice to the Tenant shall include a notice that the Tenant has a right to
object, and that if the Tenant does not object within twenty-one (21) calendar days of the
mailing of the notice, or if the Tenant's objection does not specify in what way the Landlord
is not in compliance, the rent for the Tenant's unit may be increased by the applicable
amount, based on the information in the Landlord's notice and the Board's files. Failure to file
an objection may constitute a waiver of the right to a compliance hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

848.
A

D.

Compliance Hearings

If there is a dispute among any of the parties (or any successor in interest) as to whether there
has been compliance with a previously issued decision, the hearings examiner may notice
and conduct a hearing to determine whether compliance has in fact occurred, and may issue
an appropriate decision which sets forth the extent of compliance, the date of such
compliance, and any adjustments to the original decision which are necessary in light of such
compliance or non-compliance.

The party or parties (and any successor in interest) who were originally ordered to make
repairs, pay back rent, properly register the property, or otherwise comply with an order of
the Board, shall be required to demonstrate compliance by a preponderance of the evidence
submitted at the compliance hearing.

Any party to the original proceeding (and any successor in interest) may request that a
compliance hearing be noticed and held. Such request shall set forth the area of
disagreement, and a copy of the request must be served upon all adverse parties (and any
successor in interest of any adverse party) by the party requesting the hearing.

The procedures set forth in Regulations 821-838 shall apply to compliance hearings.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

Page 52 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

849.
A

Board Initiated Hearings

The Rent Board or the Executive Director, who may designate such function to appropriate
Board Staff, may initiate a hearing after an investigation by the Rent Board or the Executive
Director has resulted in a determination that there are substantial grounds to believe that
major violations of the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner Protection
Ordinance or Board Regulations promulgated thereunder have occurred, and that 120
calendar days have passed from the date of the first occurrence of the violations.

The investigation of possible violations of the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and
Homeowner Protection Ordinance or Board Regulations may be conducted as a result of the
review of the records of the Rent Program or the records of courts and governmental
agencies. Investigations of possible violations may also be conducted on the basis of
complaints and allegations received orally or in writing by the Executive Director.

If an investigation by the Rent Board or the Executive Director has found substantial grounds
to believe that major violations of the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner
Protection Ordinance or Board Regulations have occurred, a notice of a prehearing shall be
prepared and served on the Landlord and Tenants of the affected units. The notice of
prehearing shall state clearly the sections(s) of the Ordinance or Regulations which has
allegedly been violated, along with a brief statement of the evidence found during the
investigation which supports the determination that an alleged violation has occurred. The
notice shall also set forth a proposed order which may be rendered against the alleged
violator.

The procedures set forth in Regulations 821-838 shall apply to Board-initiated hearings.

E. AtaBoard initiated hearing, the Executive Director or designee shall present the Board's

case. The issues in the hearing shall be disposed of in a final decision and order of a hearing
examiner, which may be appealed to the Rent Board.

Intervention by any current Landlord, current Tenant, former Tenant and former Landlord
shall be permitted. Intervention by any other person or entity may be allowed upon a showing
that some right, interest, liability or obligation of the person or entity seeking to intervene
may be materially affected as a result of the hearing. Requests to intervene shall be made in
writing, and should be filed and served upon all parties at least five (5) business days before
the hearing. However, upon a showing of a substantial interest in the outcome, requests to
intervene may be made and acted upon at any time prior to the conclusion of the hearing.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
850. (RESERVED)

Page 53 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

851. Deposit of Disputed Rents into Escrow

The Rent Program does not currently have an escrow process. Once the Executive Director
establishes an escrow process, Regulations 852 — 857 shall apply.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
852. Standards to Be Applied to Escrow Determinations

A. In deciding whether or not to require the payment disputed amounts in escrow, the hearing
examiner or the Board shall consider:

(1) The likelihood that the party requesting the escrow account will prevail on the merits;
(2) The likely sum or sums involved;
(3) The likely length of the escrow;

(4) The likelihood that either party may be prejudiced by the creation of denial of an escrow
account;

(5) The desires of the parties;
(6) The Tenant’s rent payment history, including any reasons for late or nonpayment of rent;

(7) The parties’ history of compliance or noncompliance with the Fair Rent, Just Cause of
Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance, Board Regulations and Orders of the
Board; and

(8) All other relevant facts which may affect the right of the Tenant not to be required to pay
rent in excess of that which is lawful.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
853. Requiring Deposit of Disputed Rents into Escrow Pending Hearing

A. Whenever a petition for individual rent adjustment is filed and it is alleged, or reasonably
appears from the circumstances, that the rent charged or demanded by the Landlord is in
excess of that permitted by the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner Protection
Ordinance and Board Regulations, any party to the proceedings may make a written request
for an order requiring the deposit of rent into an escrow account. Said request shall be made
on a form approved by the Executive Director or designee.

B. Upon receipt of such written request, the hearing examiner shall, at a prehearing conference,
consider whether an escrow account should be established and may order that reasonably
disputed amounts be paid into escrow pending the hearing and the hearing examiner's
decision on the petition. The hearing examiner may also condition any continuance or later
scheduling of a hearing upon an agreement that rent shall be either paid to the Landlord
and/or into escrow as may be appropriate.

C. Pending the hearing examiner's decision on the petition, an order by the hearing examiner
creating, modifying or terminating an escrow account may be appealed to the Board.

Page 54 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

D.

Any party requesting creation of an escrow account shall serve a copy of the request on all
other parties to the case.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

854.
A

G.

Establishment of Escrow Accounts Pending Appeal

Within twenty (20) calendar days of the date of mailing of the final decision of the hearing
examiner to the parties, any party may make written application to the Board for an order
concerning the disposition of any funds held in escrow or creation of an escrow account
pending appeal. Any such request shall be made on a form approved by the Executive
Director or designee. During the period within which such an application can be made and
pending action on said application, no disbursement of funds held in escrow shall be made.

Upon receipt of such written application, the Executive Director or designee may:
(1) Continue, terminate, or modify any escrow created by the hearing examiner; or

(2) Order that reasonably disputed amounts be paid into escrow pending the decision on any
appeal.

In the event that the party applying for the escrow order does not file an appeal within thirty-
five (35) calendar days of the date of mailing of the hearing examiner's final decision to the
parties, any order requiring the maintenance or creation of an escrow account shall
automatically be dissolved unless otherwise ordered by the hearing examiner. Upon such
dissolution, the funds held in escrow shall be disbursed in accordance with the final decision
of the hearing examiner.

Within twenty-one (21) calendar days of the date of mailing of the appeal, any non-appealing
or cross-appealing party may make written application to the Board for an order concerning
the disposition of any funds held in escrow or creation of an escrow account pending appeal.
Any such request shall be made on a form approved by the Board. During the period within
which such an application can be made and pending action on said application, no
disbursement of funds held in escrow shall be made.

Upon receipt of such written application, the Board may:
(1) Continue, terminate, or modify any escrow created by the hearing examiner; or

(2) Order that reasonably disputed amounts be paid into escrow pending the decision on the
appeal.

Any party requesting creation of an escrow account shall serve a copy of the request on all
other parties to the case.

In the decision on appeal, the Board shall order disbursement of any funds held in escrow to
the appropriate party.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

Page 55 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

855. Landlord's Compliance with Rent Overcharge Refund Order Subject to Appeal

A. A Tenant who accepts a full refund of rent overcharges, pursuant to Regulation 8XX, after
receiving written notification that acceptance of the refund will extinguish the Tenant's right
to appeal the amount of rent overcharges, is deemed to have waived the right to appeal the
amount of the refund order. The written notification shall be in language approved by the
Board.

B. Notwithstanding a Tenant's appeal of the hearing examiner's decision, the Landlord's tender
of the full amount of rent overcharges as ordered by the hearing examiner shall constitute
compliance with the refund order provided that the amount tendered, if not accepted by the
Tenant, is deposited into an escrow account established and maintained by the Rent Board.
If, on appeal, the Rent Board modifies the hearing examiner's decision and orders additional
amounts refunded, a Landlord who has tendered the full amount of the original refund order
remains in compliance with the refund order so long as the Landlord tenders to the Tenant
the additional amount of rent overcharges within 30 days of the date of the Rent Board's
decision on appeal.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
856. Disbursement of Funds Held in Escrow

Upon issuance of an order of the hearing examiner or the Board, the Executive Director or
designee, shall cause the funds held in escrow to be disbursed in accordance with the order. Any
interest which has accrued on the funds shall be disbursed and distributed in the same proportion
as the principal.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]
857. Effects of Escrow Accounts on Eviction Actions

A Tenant's deposit of rent into an escrow account pursuant to an order of the hearing examiner or
the Board shall be a defense to any action brought by the Landlord for nonpayment of that rent.

[Adopted January 24, 2018]

Page 56 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Chapter 9: STANDARDS FOR INDIVIDUAL MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE RENT
ADJUSTMENTS

900. (RESERVED)
901. Purpose

The purpose of this Chapter is to protect Tenants from unwarranted rent increases, while at the
same time allowing rent levels which provide Landlords with a fair return. It is the intent of these
regulations that individual upward adjustments in the Maximum Allowable Rent be made only
when the Landlord demonstrates that such adjustments are necessary to provide the Landlord
with a fair return under the Ordinance (RMC Sections 11.100.070 (e - k) and as required by the
California or United States Constitution.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
902. Procedure

Unless otherwise specified, petitions for rent increases and decreases under this Chapter shall
follow the procedures in Chapter 8 of these Regulations.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
903. Changes in Number of Tenants

A. Base Occupancy Level: The Base Occupancy Level for a Rental Unit, as used in this
Chapter, shall be the number of Tenants allowed by the Rental Housing Agreement as
defined in Section 11.100.030(k) of the Ordinance for the unit effective July 21, 2015, or at
the beginning of any subsequent tenancy established after a vacancy.

B. Increase in Tenants:

(2) If the number of Tenants allowed by the Rental Housing Agreement actually occupying a
unit as the Tenants’ principal residence has increased above the Base Occupancy Level
for that unit, then the Maximum Allowable Rent for the unit may be increased by up to
fifteen percent (15%) for each additional tenant above the base occupancy level, in
addition to any Maximum Allowable Rent adjustment to which the Landlord is otherwise
entitled. A petition seeking rent adjustments solely for an increased number of Tenants
will be processed under Regulation 903(D).

(2) Notwithstanding Regulation 903(B)(1), no increase in the Maximum Allowable Rent for
additional Tenants shall be granted for any additional Tenant who is a spouse, registered
domestic partner, child, grandchild, parent, grandparent, legal guardian of a child, parent
of any of the Tenants, or caretaker/attendant as required for a reasonable accommodation
for a person with a disability, unless the Tenants agree in writing to the specific
Maximum Allowable Rent increase.

Page 57 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

(3) If the number of Tenants actually occupying a Rental Unit as a principal residence
decreases subsequent to any Maximum Allowable Rent increase for additional Tenants
granted pursuant to subsection (B)(1), then the Maximum Allowable Rent increase for
that Rental Unit shall automatically decrease by the amount of the Maximum Allowable
Rent increase that is no longer justified, as a result in the decrease in the number of
Tenants, unless the Tenant and Landlord agree in writing to permanently increase the
Base Occupancy Level.

(4) Increases in the Maximum Allowable Rent due to an increase in the Base Occupancy
Level shall remain permanent. As such, if the number of Tenants actually occupying a
Rental Unit as the Tenants’ principal residence decreases subsequent to any Maximum
Allowable Rent increase for additional Tenants granted pursuant to subsection (B) (1),
then the Tenants may replace the departing Tenant with another Tenant (subject to the
Landlord’s standard screening methods).

C. Decrease in Number of Tenants Allowed:

If any policy or policies imposed by the Landlord unreasonably prevent the Tenant from
maintaining the Base Occupancy Level for that unit, then the Maximum Allowable Rent for that
unit shall be decreased by an amount equal to the percentage by which the number of allowable
Tenants has been reduced. As used in this regulation, "policy” or "policies” means any rule,
course of conduct, act or actions by a Landlord.

(1) A policy shall be deemed unreasonable if it is different from and more restrictive than
the policies originally used to screen the current Tenant(s).

(2) Refusal based on the proposed additional occupant’s lack of creditworthiness shall be
deemed unreasonable if that person will not be legally obligated to pay some or all of the
rent to the Landlord. (RMC Section 11.100.050(a) (1) (i) (c)).

(3) Refusal shall be deemed reasonable if the increase would bring the total number of
occupants above the maximum allowable under Section 503b the Uniform Housing Code
as incorporated by California Health and Safety Code Section 17922. (RMC Section
11.100.050(a) (1) (i) (c)).

D. Grounds for Objections:

Tenants responding to petitions under subsection (B) (I) may file objections with the Board on
one or more of the following grounds:

(1) The base occupancy level alleged by the landlord is incorrect; however, a tenant may not
contest a base occupancy level that was established in a prior decision;

(2) The number of tenants alleged by the landlord as being currently allowed by the lease and
actually occupying the unit as a principal residence is incorrect;

(3) An additional tenant claimed by the landlord as justifying a rent increase is a spouse,
registered domestic partner, child, grandchild, parent, grandparent, legal guardian of a

Page 58 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

child or caretaker/attendant as required for a reasonable accommodation for a
person with a disability and the original tenant(s) did not agree in writing to an increase
for such person(s);

(4) The unit is not eligible to receive annual general adjustments for any period since its rent
was last certified or individually adjusted by the Board. Any such objection shall identify
each challenged annual general adjustment and the reason for the alleged ineligibility;

(5) The landlord is collecting rent in excess of the Maximum Allowable Rent; or

(6) The unit is substantially deteriorated, fails to comply substantially with applicable state
rental housing laws or local housing, building, health and safety codes, or the landlord
does not currently provide adequate housing services.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
904. Changes in Space or Services

A. Increase in Space:

The Maximum Allowable Rent may be adjusted upward when, with the written agreement of the
Tenant(s), there is an increase in the usable space or in the Housing Services beyond that which
was provided to a unit on July 21, 2015, or when the Base Rent was first established.

(1) Additional or reconfigured space: Where a Landlord adds habitable living space to a unit
or reconfigures it, the Maximum Allowable Rent for such unit shall be permanently
increased as provided under Section 8XX Capital Improvements.

(2) Additional services: Where a Landlord adds non-habitable space or increases the services
provided to a unit, the Maximum Allowable Rent for such unit shall be increased by an
amount representing the commercially reasonable value of the additional space or
increased services. If the additional or reconfigured space or the services are
subsequently reduced or eliminated, the rent increase authorized herein shall be reduced
or terminated. Any increase for an additional bedroom shall result in an increase to the
Base Occupancy Level for an additional occupant.

(3) Increases may be denied if the added or reconfigured space or services do not clearly
benefit a majority of the affected Tenants and a Tenant objects.

(4) If the added or reconfigured space or services clearly benefit a majority of the affected
Tenants, then increases may be denied if a majority of the affected Tenants object.

B. Decrease in Space or Services; Substantial Deterioration; Failure to Provide Adequate
Services; Failure to Comply with Codes, the Warranty of Habitability or the Rental

Agreement:
(1) Decreases in Space or Services. The Maximum Allowable Rent shall be adjusted

downward where a Landlord is aware of and causes a Tenant to suffer a decrease in
housing services or living space from the services and space that were provided on July

Page 59 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

(2)

(3)

(4)

21, 2015, or from any services or space provided at the beginning of the tenancy. The
amount of the rent decrease shall be calculated by multiplying the percentage of
impairment of the Tenant's use of and benefit from the unit (as a result of the reduction in
living space or housing services) by the Maximum Allowable Rent in effect at the time of
the impairment, and for past decreases, multiplied by the period of time the impairment
existed. In determining the amount of the downward rent adjustment by the percentage of
impairment of use/benefit method, the hearing examiner may consider the reasonable
replacement cost of the space or service in question. Decreases in the Maximum
Allowable Rent shall not be granted due to a decrease in space or services that is a direct
result of intentional actions on the part of the Tenant to purposefully cause a decrease in
space or services.

Denial of Petitions for Unilateral Removal: The Board will not accept petitions from
Landlords who seek a Maximum Allowable Rent decrease for the unilateral removal or
reduction of space or services from a Tenant's base level space or services. Landlord
petitions shall be accepted only when a Tenant has expressly agreed in writing to the
removal of such space or services. "Base level space or services" are the housing services
or living space that was provided at the unit on July 21, 2015, or at the beginning of the
tenancy.

Inadequate Services & Substantial Deterioration: The Maximum Allowable Rent shall be
adjusted downward for any substantial deterioration in a Rental Unit and/or for any
failure to provide adequate Housing Services occurring during the petitioner's tenancy.
For purposes of this subsection, a substantial deterioration means a noticeable decline in
the physical quality of the Rental Unit resulting from a failure to perform reasonable or
timely maintenance and adequate Housing Services means all services necessary to
operate and maintain a Rental Unit in compliance with all applicable state and local laws
and with the terms of the Rental Housing Agreement. The amount of the rent decrease
shall be calculated by multiplying the percentage of impairment of the Tenant's use of
and benefit from the unit (as a result of the deterioration or failure to provide adequate
service, violation, breach or failure to comply) by the Maximum Allowable Rent in effect
at the time of the impairment.

Code Violations & Breach of the Warranty of Habitability:

a. Where a condition at the Rental Unit threatens the health or safety of the occupants
but does not actually impair the use of the unit, the Maximum Allowable Rent
decrease shall be in an amount that reflects the reduction in value of the Rental Unit
due to the unsafe or unhealthy condition.

b. A substantial lack of any of the affirmative standard characteristics for habitability set
forth in Civil Code section 1941.1 shall be deemed a violation of the warranty of
habitability and the Maximum Allowable Rent shall be decreased by no less than
10% or, for a violation of subsections (b), (c) or (d) of Civil Code section 1941, no

Page 60 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

less than 20%, until the condition is corrected, notwithstanding seasonal variations in
or an absence of impairment to a Tenant's use of or benefit from the unit.

c. The rent decrease authorized under this subsection for a violation of the warranty of
habitability or for a code violation that poses a significant threat to the health or
safety of Tenants (e.g., dangerous window bars, missing smoke detector) shall be
automatically doubled prospectively if proof of correction of the violation is not
submitted to the Rent Board within thirty-five (35) calendar days of mailing of the
hearing examiner's decision unless the Landlord establishes that the violation cannot
be corrected within that time due to circumstances beyond the Landlord 's control.

d. No rent shall be charged for a period in which the Landlord is found to be in violation
of California Civil Code Section 1942.4.

e. For purposes of this subsection, a breach of the warranty of habitability occurs when
the Rental Unit is not in substantial compliance with applicable building and housing
code standards, which materially affect health and safety. Minor housing code
violations which do not interfere with normal living requirements do not constitute a
breach of the warranty of habitability.

(5) Maximum Allowable Rent reductions pursuant to this Section shall be effective from the
date the Landlord first had notice of the space or service reduction, deteriorated
condition, service inadequacy, or code or habitability violation in question and shall
terminate on the date of the first rent payment due after adequate proof has been
submitted to the Board that the condition for which the reduction was granted no longer
exists.

(6) A Tenant who files a petition pursuant to this regulation must be able to establish the
basis for the reduction and when the Landlord first received notice of the decreased
service, deterioration, code violation or habitability violation. Notice may be actual or
constructive. A Landlord is deemed to have notice of any condition existing at the
inception of a tenancy that would have been disclosed by a reasonable inspection of the
Rental Unit. A copy of a housing code inspection report from the City of Richmond
should be submitted with the petition.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]
905. Maintenance of Net Operating Income (MNOI) Fair Return Standard

A. Fair Return Standard

(1) Presumption of Fair Base Year Net Operating Income. It shall be presumed that the net
operating income received by the Landlord in the Base Year provided a Fair Return.

(2) Fair Return. A Landlord has the right to obtain a net operating income equal to the Base
Year net operating income adjusted by 100% of the percentage increase in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI), since the Base Year. It shall be presumed this standard

Page 61 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations
provides a Fair Return.
(3) Base Year.

a. For the purposes of making Fair Return determinations pursuant to this section,
the calendar year 2015 is the Base Year. The Base Year CPI shall be 2015, unless
subsection (b) is applicable.

b. In the event that a determination of the allowable Rent is made pursuant to this
section, if a subsequent petition is filed, the Base Year shall be the year that was
considered as the "current year" in the prior petition.

(4) Current Year

The “current year” shall be the calendar year preceding the application. The “current year
CPI” shall be the annual CPI for the current year.

(5) Adjustment of Base Year Net Operating Income.

Landlords or Tenants may present evidence to rebut the presumption that the Base Year net
operating income provided a Fair Return. Grounds for rebuttal of the presumption shall be
based on at least one of the following findings:

a. Exceptional Expenses in the Base Year. The Landlord’s operating
expenses inthe Base Year were unusually high or low in comparison
to other years. In such instances, adjustments may be made in
calculating operating expenses in order that the Base Year operating
expenses reflect average expenses for the property over areasonable
period of time. The following factors shall be considered in making
such a finding:

I. Extraordinary amounts were expended for necessary maintenance
and repairs.

ii. Maintenance and repair expenditures were exceptionally low so as
to cause inadequate maintenance or significant deterioration in the
quality of services provided.

iii. Other expenses were unreasonably high or low notwithstanding the
application of prudent business practices.

b._Exceptional Circumstances in the Base Year. The gross income during the
Base Year was disproportionately low due to exceptional circumstances.
In such instances, adjustments may e made in calculating Base Year
gross rental income consistent with the purposes of this chapter.The
following factors shall be considered in making such a finding:

Page 62 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

V.

If the gross income during the Base Year was lower than it
might have been because some residents were charged reduced
rent.

If the gross income during the Base Year was significantly lower
than normal because of the destruction of the premises and/or
temporary eviction for construction or repairs.

The pattern of rent increases in the years prior to the Base Year
and whether those increases reflected increases in the CPI.

Base period rents were disproportionately low in comparison to the
base period rents of comparable apartments in the City.

Other exceptional circumstances.

(6) Calculation of Net Operating Income. Net operating income shall be calculated by

subtracting operating expenses from gross rental income.

a. Gross Rental Income.

Gross rental income shall include:

Gross rents calculated as gross scheduled rental income at one hundred
percent occupancy and all other income or consideration received or
receivable in connection with the use or occupancy of the Rental Unit,
except as provided in Subparagraph (B) of this section.

If there is a difference in the number of rental units between the Base Year
and the current year, in making calculations of net operating income in the
Base Year and the current year, the rental income and expenses for the
same number of units shall be used in calculating the net operating income
for both periods.

The purpose of this provision is to ensure that a petitioner is not requesting
that the current fair net operating income reach a level which was provided
in the Base Year by a larger number of units or is limited to a net
operating income which was formerly provided by a smaller number of
units.

If there are units that are vacant or owner-occupied at the time a petition is
filed which were rented in the Base Year, for the purposes of the MNOI
analysis a rental income for the unit shall be calculated on the basis of
average rents for comparable units in the building which have been
permitted vacancy decontrol increases within the past two years. If there
are no comparable units in the property rental income for the vacant or

Page 63 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

owner occupied units, the rent shall be calculated on the basis of recently
established initial rents for comparable units in the City. If there are units
that were rented in the current year, which were vacant or owner-occupied
in the Base Year, for the purposes of the MNOI analysis a rental income
for the unit for the Base Year shall be calculated on the basis of average
rents for comparable units in the building in the Base Year. If there are no
comparable units in the property, rental income for the vacant or owner
occupied units in the Base Year shall be calculated on the basis of Base
Year rents for comparable units in the City. In the alternative, the Hearing
Examiner may use another reasonable methodology to insure compliance
with the purposes of this subsection.

Gross rental income shall not include:
Utility Charges for sub-metered gas, electricity or water;
Charges for refuse disposal, sewer service, and, or other services which are
either provided solely on a cost pass-through basis and/or are regulated by
state or local law;

Charges for laundry services; and

Storage charges.

b. Operating Expenses. Operating expenses shall include the following:

Reasonable costs of operation and maintenance of the Rental Unit.

Management expenses. It shall be presumed that management expenses
have increased between the Base Year and the current year by the
percentage increase in rents or the CPI, whichever is greater, unless the
level of management services has either increased or decreased
significantly between the Base Year and the current year. This
presumption shall also be applied in the event that management expenses
changed from owner managed to managed by a third party or vice versa

Utility costs except a utility where the consideration of the income
associated with the provision of the utility service is regulated by state
law and consideration of the costs associated with the provision of the
utility service is preempted by state law or the income associated with the
provision of the utility is not considered because it is recouped from the
Tenants on a cost pass-through basis..

Real property taxes and insurance, subject to the limitation that property
taxes attributable to an assessment in a year other than the Base Year or
current year shall not been considered in calculating Base Year and/or

Page 64 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

current year operating expenses.

License, registration and other public fees required by law to the extent
these expenses are not otherwise paid or reimbursed by Tenants.

Landlord-performed labor compensated at reasonable hourly rates.
However, no Landlord-performed labor shall be included as an operating
expense unless the Landlord submits documentation showing the date,
time, and nature of the work performed. There shall be a maximum
allowed under this provision of five percent (5%) of gross income unless
the Landlord shows greater services were performed for the benefit of the
residents (HOURLY RATE PRESUMPTIONS TO BE INSERTED
UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
REGULATION).

Legal expenses. Reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred in
connection with successful good faith attempts to recover rents owing,
successful good faith unlawful detainer actions not in derogation of
applicable law, legal expenses necessarily incurred in dealings with
respect to the normal operation of the Property, and reasonable costs
incurred in obtaining a rent increase pursuant to Sections 11.100.070 of
the Ordinance.

To the extent allowable legal expenses are not annually reoccurring and
are substantial they shall be amortized over a five-year period, unless the
Rent Board concludes that a different period is more reasonable. At the
end of the amortization period, the allowable monthly rent shall be
decreased by any amount it was increased because of the application of
this provision.

The Amortized Costs of Capital Improvements. Operating expenses
include the amortized costs of capital improvements plus an interest
allowance to cover the amortization of those costs. For purposes of this
section a capital improvement shall be any improvement to a unit or
property which materially adds to the value of the property, appreciably
prolongs its useful life or adapts it to new use and has a useful life of more
than one year and a direct cost of $250.00 or more per unit affected.
Allowances for capital improvements shall be subject to the following
conditions:

The costs are amortized over the period set forth in Section
(A)(6)(b)(viii) of this regulation and in no event over a period of
less than thirty-six (36) months.

The costs do not include costs incurred to bring the Rental Unit
into compliance with a provision of the Richmond Municipal
Code or state law where the original installation of the

Page 65 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations
improvement was not in compliance with code requirements.

At the end of the amortization period, the allowable monthly rent
shall be decreased by any amount it has increased due to the
application of this provision.

The amortization period shall be in conformance with the
following schedule adopted by the Rent Board unless it is
determined that an alternate period is justified based on the
evidence presented in the hearing.

Amortization of Capital Improvements
In amortizing capital improvements,
the following schedule shall be used
to determine the amortization period
of the capital improvements Years
Appliances
Air Conditioners 10
Refrigerator 5
Stove 5
Garbage Disposal 5
Water Heater 5
Dishwasher &)
Microwave Oven 5
Washer/Dryer 5
Fans 5
Cabinets 10
Carpentry 10
Counters 10
Doors 10
Knobs 5
Screen Doors 5
Fencing and Security 5
Management 5
Tenant Assistance 5
Structural Repair and Retrofitting
Foundation Repair 10
Foundation Replacement 20
Foundation Bolting 20
Iron or Steel Work 20

Page 66 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Masonry-Chimney Repair 20
Shear Wall Installation 10
Electrical Wiring 10
Elevator 20
Fencing

Chain 10
Block 10
Wood 10

Fire Systems

Fire Alarm System 10
Fire Sprinkler System 20
Fire Escape 10

Flooring/Floor Covering

Hardwood 10
Tile and Linoleum 5
Carpet 5
Carpet Pad 5
Subfloor 10
Fumigation Tenting 5
Furniture 5
Automatic Garage Door Openers 10
Gates

Chain Link 10
Wrought Iron 10
Wood 10
Glass

Windows S
Doors 5
Mirrors 5
Heating

Central 10
Gas 10
Electric 10
Solar 10

Page 67 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Insulation 10
Landscaping

Planting 10
Sprinklers 10
Tree Replacement 10
Lighting

Interior 10
Exterior 5
Locks 10
Mailboxes 10
Meters 10
Plumbing

Fixtures 10
Pipe Replacement 10
Re-Pipe Entire Building 20
Shower Doors 5
Painting

Interior 5
Exterior &)
Paving

Asphalt 10
Cement 10
Decking 10
Plastering 10
Sump Pumps 10
Railings 10
Roofing

Shingle/Asphalt 10
Built-up, Tar and Gravel 10
Tile 10
Gutters/Downspouts 10
Security

Entry Telephone Intercom 10

Page 68 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Gates/Doors 10
Fencing 10
Alarms 10
Sidewalks/Walkways 10
Stairs 10
Stucco 10
Tilework 10
Wallpaper 5

Window Coverings
Drapes

Shades

Screens

Awnings
Blinds/Miniblinds
Shutters

orjorjorfor|o1 ol

iX. Interest Allowance for Expenses that Are Amortized. An interest
allowance shall be allowed on the cost of amortized expenses. The
allowance shall be the interest rate on the cost of the amortized expense
equal to the "average rate" for thirty-year fixed rate on home mortgages
plus two percent. The "average rate™ shall be the rate Freddie Mac last
published in its weekly Primary Mortgage Market Survey (PMMS) as of
the date of the initial submission of the petition. In the event that this rate
is no longer published, the Rent Board shall designate by regulation an
index which is most comparable to the PMMS index.

X. Impact of Vacancy Decontrol on Rent Increases Based on Capital
Improvements

If a unit becomes vacant during the pendency of a schedule which
provides for the expiration of increases for capital improvements and the
unit qualifies for a vacancy increase pursuant to Civil Code section
1954.53, the capital improvements schedule shall terminate.

c. Exclusions from Operating Expenses. Operating expenses shall not include the
following:

I. Mortgage principal or interest payments or other debt service costs and costs
of obtaining financing.

Page 69 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

e.

ii. Any penalties, fees or interest assessed or awarded for violation of any
provision of this chapter or of any other provision of law.

iii. Land lease expenses.

iv. Political contributions and payments to organizations or individuals which
are substantially devoted to legislative lobbying purposes.

v. Depreciation.

vi. Any expenses for which the Landlord has been reimbursed by any utility
rebate or discount, Security Deposit, insurance settlement, judgment for
damages, settlement or any other method or device.

vii. Unreasonable increases in expenses since the Base Year.

viii. Expenses associated with the provision of master-metered gas and electricity
services.

iX. Expenses which are attributable to unreasonable delays in performing
necessary maintenance or repair work or the failure to complete necessary
replacements. (For example if a roof replacement is unreasonably delayed,
the full cost of the roof replacement would be allowed; however, if interior
water damage occurred as a result of the unreasonable delay

Adjustments to Operating Expenses. Base Year and/or current year operating
expenses may be averaged with other expense levels for other years or amortized
or adjusted by the CPI or to reflect levels that are normal for residential Rental
Units or may otherwise be adjusted, in order to establish an expense amount for
that item which most reasonably serves the objectives of obtaining a reasonable
comparison of Base Year and current year expenses and providing a Fair Return.
If the claimed operating expense levels are exceptionally high compared to prior
expense levels and/or industry standards the Landlord shall have the burden of
proof of demonstrating that they are reasonable and/or reflect recurring expense
levels. Expenses which are exceptional and reasonable shall be amortized in
order to achieve the objectives of this section.

Projections of Base Year Operating Expenses in the Absence of Actual Data

If the Landlord does not have Base Year operating expense data, it shall be
presumed that operating expenses increased by the percentage increase in the
CPI between the Base Year and the current year. This presumption is subject to
the exception that specific operating expenses shall be adjusted by other
amounts when alternate percentage adjustments are supported by a
preponderance of evidence (such as data on changes in the rates of particular
utilities or limitations on increases in property taxes.)

Page 70 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

(7) Allocation of Rent Increases

Rent increases authorized pursuant to this section shall be allocated as follows:

a. Rent increases for unit-specific capital improvements shall be allocated to that
unit;

b. Rent increases for building-wide or common area capital improvements shall be
allocated equally among all units;

c. Rentincreases resulting from the Net Operating Income analysis shall be
allocated equally among all units;

d. Notwithstanding the subsections above, the hearing examiner or the Board, in the
interests of justice, shall have the discretion to apportion the rent increases in a
manner and to the degree necessary to ensure fairness. Such circumstances
include, but are not limited to, units that are vacant or owner occupied.

(8) Conditional Rent Adjustments for Proposed Capital Improvements

a. In order to encourage necessary capital improvements, the Board allows a
Landlord to petition for an upward rent adjustment based upon anticipated future
expenses for capital improvements. The purpose of this procedure is to permit
Landlords to seek advanced authorization for future rent adjustments based upon
anticipated capital improvements. A petition under this Section should only be
made for anticipated expenses that the Landlord intends to incur during the twelve
month period following the date of final Board decision. This procedure should
not be used for anticipated expenses for ordinary repairs and maintenance.

b. If the petition is granted in whole or in part, the rent increase shall be postponed
until such time as the capital improvements are made and an Addendum
authorizing the increases is issued.

c. No addendum shall be issued for such proposed capital improvements unless they
are completed within twenty four (24) months from the date of final decision
granting the conditional rent adjustment, unless the Landlord obtains an additional
addenda authorizing an extension of the time period to complete the capital
improvement. Extensions may be granted due to reasonable delays in the
completion of capital improvements as determined by the Hearing Examiner.

(9) Any unit which received a vacancy rent increase pursuant to Civil Code section 1954.53
within one year prior to the Fair Return application shall be ineligible for a rent increase
for the portion of any rent increased based on the cost of proposed capital improvements.

(10) Relationship of Individual Rent Adjustment to Annual General Adjustment

Page 71 of 84



ITEM G-4

City of Richmond Rent Program
PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

Any Individual Increase Adjustment established pursuant to this Section shall take into
account the extent of any Annual General Adjustments the Landlord may be implementing,
or otherwise be entitled to, at and during the time for which the Individual Adjustment is
sought regarding the petitioning year, and the Individual Adjustment may be limited or
conditioned accordingly.

If it is determined that the Landlord is not entitled to an Individual Adjustment, the Landlord
may implement the full upcoming General Adjustment.

(11)

(12)

Limits to Annual Rent Adjustments Based on Maintenance of Net Operating
Income Standard

Purpose. The purpose of this subsection (a) is to protect Tenants from substantial
rent increases which are not affordable, and which may force such Tenants to
vacate their homes and result in consequences contrary to the stated purposes of
the Ordinance, namely, to maintain the diversity of the Richmond community, to
preserve the public peace, health and safety, and advance the housing policies of
the City with regard to low and fixed income persons, minorities, students,
handicapped and the aged.

Rent Increase Limit

Notwithstanding any other provision of this regulation, the implementation of a
Maximum Allowable Rent increase shall be limited each year to fifteen percent
(15%) of the Maximum Allowable Rent on the date the petition is filed.

If the amount of any rent increase granted under these regulations exceeds this
limit, any portion in excess of the annual limit shall be deferred.

In subsequent years deferred amounts of the allowable rent increase may be
implemented.

At the end of each year the deferred amount of the increase shall be calculated
and an interest allowance shall be calculated based on the standard set forth in
Section (A)(6)(b)(ix) of this regulation. One twelfth (1/12) of the interest
allowance shall be added on to full monthly increase authorized under the MNOI
standard.

Constitutional Right to a Fair Return.

No provision of this regulation shall be applied so as to prohibit the Board from granting an
individual rent adjustment that is demonstrated by the Landlord to be necessary to meet the
requirements of this ordinance and/or constitutional Fair Return requirements.

[Adopted March 21, 2018]

Page 72 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

906-910 (RESERVED)

911. Overcharges and Other Violations

A. Overcharges: If on or after July 21, 2015, the Landlord has received rent in violation of the
Ordinance, the Landlord shall be ordered to refund the overcharge. Any overcharge refund
shall be paid to the person or persons overcharged, except as provided in Regulation 911(B),
below. For purposes of this Regulation, any receipt or retention of rent, including security
deposits and interest earned on security deposits, in violation of any order, rule or regulation
of the Board or any other applicable law shall be deemed to be an overcharge.

B. Overcharges paid by former Tenants: If any of the rent overcharge was received from former
Tenant(s), the Landlord shall make reasonable efforts to find the former Tenant(s) and refund
the overcharge. The Landlord shall notify the Board in writing of the nature, extent, and
result of those efforts within sixty (60) calendar days of the overcharge refund order.

If the Landlord does not refund any past overcharge(s) to any former Tenant(s) within sixty
(60) calendar days, or has made reasonable but unsuccessful efforts to locate the former
Tenant(s), the Landlord shall pay the overcharge(s) to the Richmond Rent Board to be held in
trust for the former Tenants for one year. Staff shall annually provide the Rent Board with an
accounting of any unclaimed funds, following which, the Board, by resolution, shall
designate a program of the City of Richmond that benefits low- and/or moderate-income
Tenants to which the unclaimed funds shall be transferred.

C. Other Violations: If the Landlord has failed to comply with the Ordinance or any rule or
regulation of the Board or in any way charges unlawful rent, the hearing examiner may make
an appropriate order for compliance or other appropriate relief.

D. Limitation on Liability for the Refund of Overcharges:

(1) Except as provided in subsection (2), no order for the refund of rent overcharges shall
require the repayment of overcharges that were actually received by the Landlord more
than three years prior to the date upon which the Individual Rent Adjustment petition is
filed.

(2) The three year limitation period shall not apply and the Landlord shall be ordered to
refund to the Tenant(s) of the affected unit(s) that portion of the rent payments made by
such Tenant(s) that have been illegally retained by the Landlord from the date which the
Tenant(s) first paid excess rent, upon proof of any of the following:

a. The Landlord willfully failed to register the affected property, or

b. The Landlord willfully provided false or inaccurate information to the Board and the
Tenant(s) were thereby induced to pay excess rent in reliance upon said information,
or

Page 73 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

c. The Landlord, through threats of eviction, physical violence, coercive actions, or
intentional misrepresentation on which the Tenant reasonably relied, prevented a
timelier filing of the petition.

(3) If the Landlord has willfully failed to register the affected property, the three year
limitations period shall commence to run on the date upon which the Landlord completes
all required registration forms for the affected property.

E. Supporting Documentation: For Tenant petitions under this Regulation, the documentary
evidence attached to the petition shall include any copies of canceled checks, rent receipts or
other documentary evidence of the claimed overcharge. If no such documentary evidence is
in the possession of the Tenant, the Tenant shall state on the petition that they do not have
documentary evidence of the overcharge and set forth the factual basis for the claim of
overcharge. Where the basis of any overcharge is ineligibility for Annual General
Adjustments due to violation of housing codes, the Tenant shall attach documentation
indicating that the unit was in violation of the warranty of habitability prior to and as of
September 1st of the applicable year and that the Landlord was aware of such violation of the
warranty of habitability. Such documentation may include a copy of an inspection report
issued by the City of Richmond.

[Adopted February 21, 2018]

912. Petition to Obtain Previously Lost Annual General Adjustments (AGAS)

A. General. When a Landlord who has previously been out of compliance comes into
compliance with the Ordinance, regulations, or applicable housing, health and safety codes,
the Hearing Examiner may grant all Annual General Adjustment rent increases denied during
the period of noncompliance prospectively. For any Rental Unit which has been registered
and for which a Base Rent has been listed or for any Rental Unit which a Landlord can show,
by a preponderance of the evidence, a good faith attempt to comply with the registration
requirements, all Annual General Adjustments which may have been denied during the
period of the Landlord’s non-compliance shall be restored prospectively once the Landlord is
in compliance with the Ordinance or regulation.

In addition, to be eligible for an Annual General Adjustment, the Landlord must state under
penalty of perjury that the unit is in substantial compliance with the ordinance, regulations
and applicable codes. Specifically, the Landlord shall certify to payment of all fees and
penalties owed to the Richmond Rent Program which have not otherwise been barred by the
statute of limitations, substantial compliance with applicable local and state housing code
provisions, and satisfaction of all claims for refunds of rental overcharges brought by Tenants
or by the Rent Board on behalf of Tenants of the affected unit.

The Landlord is not entitled to recover any Annual General Adjustments which have been
previously regained through a net operating income analysis or for new tenancies that were
established after the loss of the Annual General Adjustment.

Page 74 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

B. Petition: Upon the petition of the Landlord, the Landlord's eligibility for previously lost
Annual General Adjustments shall be determined. At the time of filing the petition, the owner
shall submit a proof of service showing that all affected Tenants have been provided with a
complete copy of the documents filed. Chapter 8 these Regulations shall govern all additional
petition procedures for Annual General Adjustment petitions.

C. Rent increases permitted under this Section shall be applied in a manner consistent with
Regulation 602 (Banking of Annual General Adjustment rent increases.)

[Adopted February 21, 2018]

Page 75 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

CHAPTER 10: JUST CAUSE REQUIRED FOR EVICTION

1000. Purpose

The purpose of this Chapter is to clarify provisions of the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and
Homeowner Protection Ordinance concerning termination of a tenancy for a breach of the lease
or creating a nuisance, and the necessity of, in most situations, providing a written warning
notice to cease.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]

1001. Notices of Termination of Tenancy or Change in Terms of Tenancy — All Rental
Units

Landlords of Controlled Rental Units and Landlords of Rental Units as described in Chapter 2 of
this Regulation shall file with the Board within two (2) business days after service of a notice on
a Tenant of a termination of tenancy or change in terms of tenancy a copy of such notice, with a
proof of service of the notice, including time and date of service, using, absent extraordinary
circumstances, the appropriate online form on the Rent Program website. If a Landlord does not
file with the Board the notice and proof of service concerning a change in the terms of a tenancy
as provided in this Section, such change shall be deemed null and void. If a Landlord does not
file with the Board the notice and proof of service concerning a termination of tenancy as
provided in this Section, the failure is a complete defense in an unlawful detainer.

“Notice of Termination of Tenancy” as used in this Chapter 10 shall mean any notice served on a
Tenant in accordance with State law which seeks to recover possession of a Rental Unit. This
includes, but is not limited to, three-day notices to pay rent or quit, notices to perform covenant
or quit, and all other termination notices permitted under State law.

[Formerly Regulation 17-10; adopted September 20, 2017]
1002. Termination of a Tenancy for Breach of Lease

The Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and Homeowner Protection Ordinance (Chapter 11.100,
Richmond Municipal Code) provides that a Landlord may terminate a tenancy if a Tenant has
continued, after written notice to cease, to substantially violate the material terms of a rental
agreement, provided such terms are reasonable, legal and have been accepted in writing by the
Tenant or made part of the rental agreement. R.M.C § 11.100.050(a)(2). Some behavior,
however, may warrant a Landlord to initiate the termination of a tenancy immediately without
providing a written notice to cease. This Regulation would provide that authority.

A. Notices to cease concerning violations of the material terms of a rental agreement: Except for
those items identified in paragraph 3 of this Chapter, if a Tenant violates the material terms
of a rental agreement, the Landlord must provide the Tenant with a Written Warning Notice
to Cease. The Landlord must serve the written notice within a reasonable time period prior to
serving a notice to terminate a tenancy. For purposes of this subsection (A), a reasonable

Page 76 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

time period shall mean either not less than three business days or, if it is not reasonable that
the time period to cure the violation can be accomplished within three business days, the
Tenant has started to cure the violation within three business days and thereafter diligently
pursues the cure of the violation. The written notice shall inform the Tenant (i) that the
failure to cure the violation may result in the Landlord’s initiating an eviction proceeding, (ii)
of the right to request a reasonable accommodation and (iii) the contact number for the Rent
Board. The written notice shall also include sufficient details allowing a reasonable person
to comply and shall also include any information necessary to determine the date, time,
place, witnesses present and other circumstances concerning the reason for the notice. See
R.M.C 8§ 11.100.050(d). If the Tenant violates the same or substantially the same material
terms of the rental agreement within 12 months from the date the Tenant received the initial
Written Warning Notice to Cease, the Landlord need not serve a further Written Warning
Notice to Cease but may then take action to terminate the tenancy. As to Tenants who violate
paragraph 3 of this Chapter, a Landlord need not serve a Written Warning Notice to Cease
for a violation of the terms of the lease.

B. Tenant’s right to sublease: R.M.C. 8§ 11.100.050(a)(2)(i) RMC provides: If (i) a Tenant
requests the Landlord in writing to sublease the rental unit, (ii) the Tenant continues to reside
in the rental unit as the Tenant’s primary residence, (iii) the sublease replaces one or more
departed Tenants under a rental housing agreement on a one for one basis and (iv) the
Landlord fails to respond to the Tenant in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of
receipt of the Tenant’s written request, the Tenant’s request shall be deemed approved by the
Landlord.

(1) A Landlord’s reasonable refusal of the Tenant’s written request may be
based on, but is not limited to, the ground that the total number of occupants
in a rental unit exceeds the maximum number of occupants as determined
under Section 503(b) of the Uniform Housing Code as incorporated by
California Health and Safety Code Section 17922, as described below:

I. Every residential rental unit must have at least one room that is at least
120 square feet; other rooms used for living must be at least 70 square
feet; and any room used for sleeping must increase the minimum floor
area by 50 square feet for each occupant in excess of two. Different
rules apply in the case of "efficiency units.” (See 1997 Uniform
Housing Code Section 503(b), Health and Safety Code Section
17958.1.)

ii. The standard shall be two occupants per bedroom plus one additional
occupant.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]

Page 77 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

1003. Termination of a Tenancy for Engaging in Criminal Activity, including Drug-
related Criminal Activity

A. A Landlord may initiate an action to terminate a tenancy (as provided under State law)
without providing a written warning notice to cease if all of the following are met:

(1) The Tenant has:

a. engaged in criminal activity, including drug-related criminal activity, in or near
the Tenant’s rental unit that threatens the health, safety or right to peaceful
enjoyment of the property by other members of the Tenant’s household or by
other Tenants; or

b. has engaged in or threatened violent or abusive behavior to other members of the
Tenant’s household or to other Tenants; or

c. has permitted the rental unit to be used for, or to facilitate criminal activity,
including drug related criminal activity, that threatens the health, safety or right to
peaceful enjoyment of the property by other members of the Tenant’s household
or by other Tenants

(2) The Landlord has within a reasonable time reported the criminal activity or the violent or
abusive behavior to law enforcement.

(3) Law enforcement has investigated the criminal activity or violent or abusive behavior and
has advised the Landlord there is probable cause that the Tenant engaged in criminal
activity or violent or abusive behavior as reported by the Landlord.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if there is more than one Tenant in a rental unit, this
Regulation 1003(A) shall apply only to that Tenant or those Tenants for which the law
enforcement investigation determines there is probable cause that the Tenant(s) engaged
in criminal activity or violent or abusive behavior.

B. A Landlord may initiate an action to terminate a Tenant’s tenancy without providing a
written warning notice to cease if (1) a member of Tenant’s household or a guest or invitee of
the Tenant engages in the activity or behavior set forth in paragraphs (i), (ii) or (iii) of
subsection (a) of this Section 3, (2) the Landlord within a reasonable time has reported the
activity or behavior to law enforcement, (3) law enforcement has investigated the activity or
behavior and has advised the Landlord there is probable cause a member of the Tenant’s
household or a guest or invitee of the Tenant has engaged in the activity or behavior as
reported by the Landlord and (4) the Tenant fails to demonstrate to the Landlord that the
person who engaged in the activity or behavior has been removed from the Tenant’s
household or the Tenant demonstrated that the person who engaged in the activity or
behavior had been removed from the Tenant’s household but the Tenant has permitted such
person to return to the Tenant’s household. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if there is more
than one Tenant in the rental unit, this subsection (b) shall apply only to that Tenant or those
Tenants to which paragraphs (1) and (4) of this subsection (b) applies.

Page 78 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

C. For purposes of this Regulation, criminal activity shall include but not be limited to
prostitution as defined in Penal Code, section 647 (b), criminal street gang activity as defined
in Penal Code section 186.20 and following, assault and battery, as defined in Penal Code,
sections 240 and 242, burglary as defined in Penal Code section 459, the unlawful use and
discharge of firearms as prohibited under Penal Code section 245, sexual offenses as defined
In Penal Code sections 261 and following and 286 or any other behavior that involves the
imminent or actual threat to the health of safety of the Landlord or other Tenants or actual
property damage in excess of $5,000.

1) For purposes of this Regulation, drug related criminal activity includes, but is not limited
to, the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, use or possession with the intention to
manufacture, sell, distribute or use a controlled substance as defined in Section 102 of the
Controlled Substance Act [21 USC 802] and/or as defined in Health and Safety Code,
Section 11350, except as may be permitted under State and local law.

2) For purposes of this Regulation, abusive or violent behavior includes verbal as well as
physical abuse or violence, including the use of racial epithets or other language, written
or oral that is customarily used to intimidate.

3) For purposes of this Regulation, threatening refers to oral or written threats or physical
gestures that communicate to a reasonable person an intent to abuse to intent to commit
violence.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]
1004. Termination of a Tenancy for Creating a Nuisance

A. Definition: A nuisance, as used in this Regulation, is any conduct that constitutes a nuisance
as defined in subsection 4 of Section 1161 of the Civil Code of Procedure or causing
substantial damage to the rental unit. Nuisance also includes conduct by the Tenant occurring
on the property that substantially interferes with the use and enjoyment of neighboring
properties that rises to the level of a nuisance as defined in subsection 4 of Section 1161 of
the Code of Civil Procedure.

B. Violations for Creating a Nuisance within a 12 Month Period: If a Tenant engages in conduct
that constitutes a nuisance, the Landlord must provide the Tenant with a Written Warning
Notice to Cease. The Landlord must serve the written notice within a reasonable time period
prior to serving a notice to terminate a tenancy. For purposes of this subsection (b), a
reasonable time period shall mean either not less than three business days or, if it is not
reasonable that the time period to abate the nuisance can be accomplished within three
business days, the Tenant has taken steps to abate the nuisance within three business days
and thereafter diligently pursues the abatement of the nuisance. The written notice shall
inform the Tenant (i) that the failure to abate the nuisance may result in the Landlord’s
initiating an eviction proceeding, (ii) the right to request reasonable accommodation and (iii)
the contact number for the Rent Board. The written notice shall also include sufficient

Page 79 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

details allowing a reasonable person to comply and shall also include any information
necessary to determine the date, time, place, witnesses present and other circumstances
concerning the reasons for the notice. If the Tenant creates the same or substantially similar
nuisance within 12 months from the date the Tenant received the initial Written Warning
Notice to Cease, the Landlord need not serve a further Written Warning Notice to Cease, but
may then take action to terminate the tenancy.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]

1005. Substantial Damage to the Rental Unit

Except as provided in Regulation 1003(C), notice that the Tenant has willfully caused
substantial damage to the rental unit must give the Tenant at least 45 days after service of the
notice to repair the damage or pay the Landlord for the reasonable cost of repairing such damage.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]

1006. Illegal Use of the Rental Unit or the Property on which the Rental Unit is located

A person who illegally sells a controlled substance in the rental unit or on the property on which
the rental property is located, or uses the rental unit or the property on which the rental property
is located to further that illegal purpose, is deemed to have committed the illegal act in the rental
unit or on the property on which the rental unit is located, in accordance with subsection 4 of
Section 1161 of the Civil Code of Procedure.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]
1007. Victims of Certain Criminal Activity

A. Notwithstanding Regulation 1003(A) and Regulation 1003(B), a Landlord shall not take any
action to terminate a tenancy under R.M.C § 11.100.050 (a)(3), against a Tenant or a member
of a Tenant’s household who is a victim of domestic violence as defined in Section 6211 of
the California Family Code, or against a Tenant or a member of a Tenant’s household who is
a victim of sexual assault, stalking, human trafficking or abuse or an elder or dependent adult
if (i) the domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, human trafficking or abuse of an elder or
a dependent adult has been documented (A) by a temporary restraining order, emergency
protective order or protective order issued within the last 180 days pursuant to law that
protects the Tenant or member of Tenant’s household from domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, human trafficking, or abuse of an elder or a dependent adult or (B) there is a written
report, written within the last 180 days, by a peace officer stating that the Tenant or a
member of the Tenant’s household has filed a report alleging that he or she is a victim of
domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, human trafficking, or abuse of an elder or a
dependent adult or (ii) the person against whom the protective order has been issued or who
was named in the police report as committing an act of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, human trafficking or abuse or an elder or a dependent adult is not a Tenant of the
same rental unit as the Tenant or a member of the Tenant’s household.

Page 80 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

B. Notwithstanding Regulation 1007(A), a Landlord may terminate the tenancy of a Tenant or a
member of a Tenant’s household if (i) either (A) the Tenant allows the person against whom
he protective order has been issued or who was named in the police report as committing an
act of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, human trafficking or abuse of an elder or a
dependent adult to visit the rental property or (B) the Landlord reasonably believes the
presence of the person against whom the protective order has been issued or who was named
in the police report as having committing an act of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, human trafficking or abuse an elder or a dependent adult poses a physical threat to
other Tenants, guests, invitees or to a Tenant’s right to quiet enjoyment and (ii) the Landlord
previously gave a three days’ notice to the Tenant to correct a violation of paragraph (i) of
subsection (b) of this Section.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]

1008. Requirement to File the Written Warning Notice to Cease with the Rent Board

If a Landlord seeks to terminate a tenancy on grounds of breach of lease, nuisance or failure to
give access, the Landlord shall file with the Rent Board, within two business days of service on
the Tenant of such notice of termination of tenancy, a proof of service that such notice of

termination of tenancy, along with a copy of the Written Warning Notice(s), if applicable, was
served on the Tenant.

[Formerly Regulation 17-08; adopted December 20, 2017]

Page 81 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

CHAPTER 11: REMEDIES

Page 82 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

CHAPTER 12: JUDICIAL REVIEW

Page 83 of 84



City of Richmond Rent Program ITEM G-4

PROPOSED Reformatting of Adopted Rent Board Regulations

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing Regulation was duly adopted and passed by
the Richmond Rent Board in a regular meeting assembled on , by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTENTIONS:

Cynthia Shaw, Rent Board Clerk

David Gray, Chair

Approved as to form:

Charles Oshinuga
Rent Board Staff Attorney

State of California }
County of Contra Costa 'SS.
City of Richmond }

Page 84 of 84



This page intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564
Meeting Date: _July 18, 2018 Final Decision Date Deadline: July 18, 2018

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and Homeowner Protection Ordinance
(“Rent Ordinance”) fully exempts from its provisions “Rental Units in hotels, motels, inns, tourist homes and rooming and
boarding houses which are rented primarily to transient guests for a period of fewer than fourteen (14) days.” Richmond
Municipal Code § 11.100.030. Rent Board Regulation 201 mirrors R.M.C § 11.100.030 but does not clarify the meaning of
rooming and boarding houses. To aid both Landlords and Tenants in understanding their respective rights and obligations,
staff finds it necessary to adopt a Regulation clarifying the meaning of rooming and boarding houses.

INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY

[] City Council [] Redevelopment [] Housing Authority [] Surplus Property [] Joint Powers
Agency Authority Financing Authority
[J Finance [] Public Safety Public  [] Local Reuse Authority X Other: Rent Board
Standing Services Standing
Committee Committee
ITEM

(] Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit)

[] Public Hearing X] Regulation [] Other:

[] Contract/Agreement ] Rent Board As Whole

[] Grant Application/Acceptance [_] Claims Filed Against City of Richmond

[ ] Resolution [] Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: ADOPT Regulation 201.5, defining the meaning of rooming and boarding houses and creating
standards that must be followed when determining whether a property is considered a rooming and boarding house — Rent
Program (Nicolas Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-6564).

AGENDA ITEM NO:

H-1.

rev 2/06 P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rgst Formrev.doc



This page intentionally left blank



CITY OF RICHMOND RENT PROGRAM

AGENDA REPORT

Rielmond

DATE: July 18, 2018
TO: Chair Gray and members of the Rent Board
FROM: Nicolas Traylor, Executive Director

Charles Oshinuga, Staff Attorney

SUBJECT: REGULATION CLARIFYING THE MEANING OF ROOMING AND
BOARDING HOUSES

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE:

The Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and Homeowner Protection
Ordinance (“Rent Ordinance”) fully exempts from its provisions “Rental Units in hotels,
motels, inns, tourist homes and rooming and boarding houses which are rented
primarily to transient guests for a period of fewer than fourteen (14) days.” Richmond
Municipal Code § 11.100.030. Rent Board Regulation 201 mirrors R.M.C § 11.100.030
but does not clarify the meaning of rooming and boarding houses. To aid both
Landlords and Tenants in understanding their respective rights and obligations, staff
finds it necessary to adopt a Regulation clarifying the meaning of rooming and boarding
houses.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

ADOPT Regulation 201.5, defining the meaning of rooming and boarding houses and
creating standards that must be followed when determining whether a property is
considered a rooming and boarding house — Rent Program (Nicolas Traylor/Charles
Oshinuga 620-6564).

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact related to this item.

DISCUSSION:

Background

Both the Rent Ordinance and existing Rent Board Regulations provide that rooming and
boarding houses that have been rented primarily to transient guests for a period of

440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804-1630
Telephone: (510) 234-RENT (7368) Fax: (510) 307-8149 www.richmondrent.org



ITEM H-1

fewer than fourteen (14) days are fully exempt from the provisions of the Rent
Ordinance. While the Rent Ordinance and existing Regulations provide a full exemption
from both Rent Control and Just Cause for Eviction, neither explain what constitutes a
rooming and boarding house. This lack of clarity complicates determining whether or not
a property is fully exempt, since the full exemption is predicated upon whether the
property is a rooming and boarding house. To that end, staff members are proposing a
Regulation to define rooming and boarding houses and establish a list of factors staff
must consider when making a determination as to what constitutes a rooming and
boarding house.

Proposed Requlation 201.5 utilizes Richmond’s Zoning Code definition of rooming and
boarding houses to clarify both the Rent Ordinance and existing Regulation’s usage of
the word rooming and boarding consistent with existing City policy.

Richmond Municipal Code Section 15.04.020(122) states:

Rooming or boarding house means any building or portion
thereof other than a hotel where lodging is available for
permanent occupancy and is provided with or without meals
for 5 or more persons for compensation. Definition includes
clubs, fraternities, and sororities, etc.

It is important to remain within the bounds of Richmond Municipal Code Section
15.04.020(122), as the Zoning provisions are used in Richmond’s General Plan and two
entirely separate definitions may lead to confusion and unintended consequences. To
avoid inconsistencies with Richmond’s Zoning Code, the proposed Regulation 201.5
closely resembles the definition provided in Richmond Municipal Code Section
15.04.020(122). While remaining within the bounds of the Richmond Zoning Code,
Regulation 201.5 offers additional clarity by explaining that the rooms offered for rent
must be offered for rent or rented to at least five (5) separate individuals under separate
Rental Housing Agreements. Regulation 201.5 also creates factors that staff members
and/or the hearing examiner must consider when making a determination as to whether
a property is a rooming and boarding house, such as whether the Landlord or Tenant
maintains control over Tenant replacement, whether there is a single or multiple Rental
Housing Agreement, the relationship between the Tenants of the Rooming and
Boarding house, etc. Aside from these factors, Regulation 201.5 reaffirms that both
Landlords and Tenants retain their rights to challenge the exempt/non-exempt of a
property via Chapter 2 (Applicability) and Chapter 4 (Registration & Fees) of the Rent
Board’s adopted Regulations.

Conclusion
Staff members recommend the Rent Board adopt the aforementioned Regulation to

clarify the meaning of rooming and boarding houses so that Landlords and Tenants
better ascertain their rights and obligations under the Rent Ordinance.

Page 2 of 3
July 18, 2018



ITEM H-1

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

Attachment 1 — Regulation 201.5

Page 3 of 3
July 18, 2018



This page intentionally left blank



ITEM H-1

ATTACHMENT 1
201.5 Rooming and Boarding Houses.

A. For purposes of Regulation 201, Rooming and Boarding house(s) shall mean any building or
portion thereof other than a hotel containing at least five (5) rooms individually offered for
rent or rented to at least five tenants under separate Rental Housing Agreements.

B. Where any building, structure, or part thereof is considered a Rooming and Boarding house,
each room shall be treated as an individual Rental Unit and must be individually registered
with the Rent Program, in a manner consistent with Chapter 4 of these Regulations.

C. Use of a single Rental Housing Agreement shall not be dispositive in determining whether a
building, structure, or part thereof is a Rooming and Boarding house. Rather, the following
factors shall be considered by the Rent Program when determining whether a building,
structure, or part thereof is a Rooming and Boarding house:

a. Whether the Landlord or Tenant maintains control over Tenant Replacement;
b. Whether there is a single or multiple Rental Housing Agreement(s);

The relationship between the Tenants of the Rooming and Boarding house;
d. How Rent is distributed, collected, and/or paid to the Landlord;
e. Access to common areas and/or housing services; and

f. The period of occupancy set forth in each single or multiple Rental Housing
Agreement.

This is not an exhaustive list and the Rent Program may consider other evidence that has
a tendency to prove or disprove that a particular building, structure, or part thereof is a
Rooming and Boarding house.



This page intentionally left blank



Department: Rent Program

Meeting Date: _July 18, 2018

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564

Final Decision Date Deadline: July 18, 2018

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and Homeowner Protection Ordinance
(“Rent Ordinance”) defines security deposits as rent and because one of the primary purposes of the Rent Ordinance is
the stabilization of rent, the Regulation of security deposits falls both within the purview and purpose of the Rent Board.
Recently, staff members have received complaints relating to security deposits. Specifically, there have been numerous
attempts to increase security deposit amounts after a tenancy has commenced. Because security deposits are considered
rent, the Rent Board considers such an attempt a rent overcharge. In fact, the Rent Board adopted Regulation 911
permitting tenants to petition on rent overcharges, including security deposits. However, Regulation 911 does not specify
the circumstances where a retention or acceptance of a security deposit is impermissible, triggering a Tenant's right to file
a petition. To provide greater clarity regarding security deposit increases and related petitions, staff finds it necessary to
adopt Regulations explaining the circumstances where it is permissible to increase security deposits, and/or file a petition
based on a Rent-Overcharge.

INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY

[ city Council [] Redevelopment ] Housing Authority [ Surplus Property ~ [] Joint Powers
Agency Authority Financing Authority

[J Finance [] Public Safety Public  [] Local Reuse Authority X]Other: Rent Board
Standing Services Standing
Committee Committee

ITEM

[_] Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit)

[] Public Hearing X Regulation [] Other:

] Rent Board As Whole
[] Claims Filed Against City of Richmond
[] Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)

[] Contract/Agreement
[] Grant Application/Acceptance
[ ] Resolution

RECOMMENDED ACTION: (1) REMOVE Chapter 11 of the Regulations entitled “Remedies” and APPROVE a new
Chapter 11 of the Regulation entitled “Security Deposit”, (2) ADOPT Regulation 1101 describing the permissibility of
security deposit increases, and ADOPT Regulation 1102 explaining the circumstances where a Tenant may file a petition
based on an unlawful retention or increase in the security deposit— Rent Program (Nicolas Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-
6564).

AGENDA ITEM NO:

H-2.

rev 2/06 P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqgst Formrev.doc




This page intentionally left blank



CITY OF RICHMOND RENT PROGRAM

AGENDA REPORT

Rielmond

DATE: July 18, 2018
TO: Chair Gray and members of the Rent Board
FROM: Nicolas Traylor, Executive Director

Charles Oshinuga, Staff Attorney
SUBJECT: REGULATIONS CONCERNING SECURITY DEPOSITS
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE:

The Richmond Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and Homeowner Protection
Ordinance (“Rent Ordinance”) defines security deposits as rent and because one of the
primary purposes of the Rent Ordinance is the stabilization of rent, the Regulation of
security deposits falls both within the purview and purpose of the Rent Board. Recently,
staff members have received complaints relating to security deposits. Specifically, there
have been numerous attempts to increase security deposit amounts after a tenancy has
commenced. Because security deposits are considered rent, the Rent Board considers
such an attempt a rent overcharge. In fact, the Rent Board adopted Regulation 911
permitting tenants to petition on rent overcharges, including security deposits. However,
Regulation 911 does not specify the circumstances where a retention or acceptance of
a security deposit is impermissible, triggering a Tenant’s right to file a petition. To
provide greater clarity regarding security deposit increases and related petitions, staff
finds it necessary to adopt Regulations explaining the circumstances where it is
permissible to increase security deposits, and/or file a petition based on a Rent-
Overcharge.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

(1) REMOVE Chapter 11 of the Regulations entitled “Remedies” and APPROVE a
new Chapter 11 of the Regulation entitled “Security Deposit”,

(2) ADOPT Regulation 1101 describing the permissibility of security deposit
increases, and ADOPT Regulation 1102 explaining the circumstances where a
Tenant may file a petition based on an unlawful retention or increase in the
security deposit— Rent Program (Nicolas Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-6564).

440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804-1630
Telephone: (510) 234-RENT (7368) Fax: (510) 307-8149 www.richmondrent.org



ITEM H-2

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact related to this item.

DISCUSSION:

Background

The Rent Ordinance explains that its purpose is to promote “neighborhood and
community stability, healthy housing, and affordability for renters in the City of
Richmond by controlling excessive rent[s]...to the greatest extent allowable under
California law...” Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.010. To achieve this
purpose, the Rent Ordinance broadly defines rents and includes security deposits within
its definitions. Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.040(j). Finally, it obligates the
Rent Board to promulgate Rules and Regulations that will further the purpose of the
Rent Ordinance. Because one of the Rent Ordinance’s purposes is to control excessive
rent, and security deposits are considered rent, the Rent Board has both the duty and
the power to control security deposits to the extent allowable by existing law.

Recently, Staff has received a number of complaints regarding attempted security
deposit increases. Regulation 911 permits Tenants to file Rent-Overcharge petitions
based on an increase of a security deposit, but the Regulation does not explain when
said increase is impermissible.

Given the increase in complaints relating to security deposits and the need for more
clarity, staff is proposing Regulations that would explain the circumstances where it is
permissible to increase security deposits, and/or file a petition based on a Rent-
Overcharge.

California Courts permit Rent Control jurisdictions to requlate both the amount of
security deposits that may be charged the circumstances under which it may be

charged.

California Civil Code Section 1950.5 defines and regulates the use of “security for a
rental agreement for residential property.” Among other things, California Civil Code
Section 1950.5 governs how the security deposit may be used by the Landlord, when
the deposit must be refunded to the Tenant and limits the amount of security deposit the
Landlord may demand. Specifically, California Civil Code Section 1950.5 explains that
at the inception of the tenancy, a Landlord may request a security deposit not to exceed
two times the monthly rent for unfurnished Rental Units, and three times the monthly
rent for furnished Rental Units. However, California Civil Code Section 1950.5 does not
govern what the amount of “rent” must be in determining the security deposit limit, nor
does it govern the frequency that the security deposit can be increased. Instead,
California courts have concluded that local jurisdictions may regulate the amount of
security deposit that may be charged, insofar as these local jurisdictions are regulating
rent. People v. Tannenbaum (1994) 23 Cal.App.4th Supp.6.

Page 2 of 3
July 18, 2018



ITEM H-2

The Proposed Regulations would requlate both the permissibility of an increase in the
security deposit and the filing of a Tenant petition based on an increase in the security

deposit.

To achieve the Rent Ordinance’s purpose and to address community concerns, staff
finds the proposed regulations to be reasonably necessary. Regulation 1101 recognizes
that a Landlord may set the amount of security in accordance with California Civil Code
Section 1950.5, at the beginning of a tenancy, but limits the situations where a Landlord
may increase the security deposit during the tenancy. It permits an increase in the
security deposit only where a Tenant wants to have a pet, and pets were expressly
prohibited in the Tenant’s Rental Housing Agreement. Regulation 1102 clarifies that a
Tenant may bring a petition for Rent Overcharges, where a Landlord either increases
the security deposit in violation of Regulation 1101, or fails to return the security deposit
in violation of California Civil Code Section 1950.5.

Conclusion
Staff members recommend the Rent Board adopt the aforementioned Regulations to
describe the permissibility of security deposit increases and explain the circumstances

where a Tenant may file a petition based on an unlawful retention or increase in the
security deposit because it constitutes a Rent Overcharge.

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:
Attachment 1 — Regulation 1101

Attachment 2 — Regulation 1102

Page 3 of 3
July 18, 2018



This page intentionally left blank



ITEM H-2

ATTACHMENT 1
1101. Security Deposit Cannot be Increased During the Tenancy

A. At the inception of a tenancy, a Landlord may set the security deposit in accordance with
California Civil Code Section1950.5 et seq, as amended. However, where a Landlord
demands, accepts, or retains any payment as a security deposit within the meaning of
California Civil Code Section1950.5 et seq, as amended, the security deposit shall not be
increased during the tenancy. The tenancy shall be measured by the existence of at least one
original occupant occupying the Rental Unit as described in Regulation 703 and Regulation
706 . Where all of the original occupants have voluntarily vacated the Rental Unit, the
Landlord may reset the security deposit amount in accordance with California Civil Code
Section1950.5 et seq, as amended, and other applicable State law.

B. Notwithstanding Regulation 1101(A), where a pet is not a service animal or assistance
animal, which includes emotional support animals, and where pets were prohibited or limited
under the Rental Housing Agreement, a landlord may file a petition for an upward
adjustment of the security deposit if the tenant provides written consent to the security
deposit increase in exchange for being allowed to have a pet or pets. If an increase in the
security deposit is granted, in no event shall the total security deposit exceed the limitations
provided in California Civil Code Section1950.5, et seq, as amended. Nothing in this section
shall abrogate any rights afforded by Local, State or Federal law, including but not limited to,
the Fair Housing Act and California Fair Employment and Housing Act.



This page intentionally left blank



ITEM H-2
ATTACHMENT 2

1102. Security Deposit as Rent Overcharges

A. Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.030(j) defines security deposit as Rent. Where a
security deposit, or increase in a security deposit, is demanded, accepted, or retained in
violation of Regulation 1101(A), there exists a Rent increase. A Tenant may file a Petition
for Rent Overcharges pursuant to Regulation 911 with the Richmond Rent Program to
challenge the Rent increase.

B. California Civil Code Section 1950.5 et seq., as amended, establishes a Landlords’ obligation
to return a security deposit. Where a Landlord retains a security deposit in violation of
California Civil Code 1950.5 et seq, as amended, such an act shall constitute a Rent
overcharge and a Tenant may bring a petition for Rent Overcharges pursuant to Regulation
911 with the Richmond Rent Program.



This page intentionally left blank



	Agenda 7_18_18 Final
	Compiled Item G-1
	Agenda Request Form Item G-1
	Department: Rent Program

	Minutes_6-20-18 FINAL

	Compiled Item G-2
	Agenda Request Form
	Department: Rent Program

	Linda Newton _ Reg re exempt units - 5-15-2018

	Compiled Item G-3
	Agenda Request Form Item G-3
	Department: Rent Program

	Report - June 2018

	Compiled Item G-4
	Agenda Request Form
	Department: Rent Program

	ITEM G-4 Draft Reformat of Regulations
	b. Operating Expenses. Operating expenses shall include the following:


	Compiled Item H-1
	Agenda Request Form
	Department: Rent Program

	Item-H1- Agenda_Report
	H-1_Attachment 1

	Compiled Item H-2
	Agenda Request Form
	Department: Rent Program

	Item H-2_Agenda_Report
	Item-H2 Attachment 1
	Item-H2 Attachment 2




